
 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

 
Schools Forum 

  
Agenda 

 
Monday 14 October 2013 

2.00 pm 
Hurlingham & Chelsea School, Peterborough Road, London, SW6 3ED 

 
To: Sean Callaghan  

Dennis Charman  
Andrew Christie 
Sally Coates 
Phil Cross  
Gill Del Bravo  
Alison Farmer  
Ian Heggs  
David McFadden  
Dave McNamara 
Remi Oladapo  
Michael Pettavel 
Jude Ragan 
Andy Rennison 
Sally Whyte  

 
 
 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Craig Bowdery 

Principal Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 �: 020 8753 2278 
 E-mail: craig.bowdery@lbhf.gov.uk  
 
Reports on the open agenda are available on the Council’s website: 
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend.  
 
 

Date Issued: 
 

09 October 2013 
 

 
 



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Schools Forum 
Agenda 

 
14 October 2013 

 
 
Item  Pages 
1. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  1 - 2 
 To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 19th March 2013 

 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

3. A GUIDE TO HAMMERSMITH AND FULHAM'S FUNDING FORMULA 
AND FINAL DSG 2013/14  

3 - 9 

 Report from Andy Rennison 
 

 

4. AMENDMENTS TO THE SCHOOL FUNDING FORMULAE  10 - 23 
 Technical Paper, for information. Key points will be referenced at the 

meeting. 
 

 

5. PROPOSED CHANGES TO SCHOOL AND EARLY YEARS FINANCE 
REGULATIONS  

24 - 28 

 Technical Paper, for information. Key points will be referenced at the 
meeting. 
 

 

6. DSG BUDGET MONITORING   
 This item has been deferred to the next meeting  

 
 

7. SCHOOL BALANCES  29 - 43 
 To receive a report from 3BM  

 
 

8. TWO YEAR OLD PROGRAMME UPDATE  44 - 47 
 To receive a report from Margaret Murphy  

 
 

9. NURSERY FUNDING REVIEW UPDATE   
 To receive a verbal update from Dave McNamara  

 
 

10. SEN REVIEW  48 - 56 
 To receive a report from Alison Farmer  

 
 

11. SCHOOL AUDIT UPDATE - CHANGES TO THE SCHEME FOR 
FINANCING SCHOOLS  

57 - 72 

 To receive the 2012/13 summary of school audit activity, presented by 
Dave McNamara 

 



 
12. FOR INFORMATION  73 - 97 
 i) TFM 

ii) Managed Services  
iii) Schools Forum draft Workplan  

 
 
 

 

 



 
LONDON BOROUGH OF HAMMERSMITH AND FULHAM 
 
EXTRODINARY MEETING OF THE SCHOOLS FORUM 

 
Tuesday 19 March 2013, Addison Annexe, 17:30-19:30 

Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
 

1.00 Apologies  

1.01 Attendees and apologies noted as follows: 

Attendees: Apologies: 
David McFadden DMcF Phil Cross PC 
Jude Ragan JR Sally Coates SCo 
Michael Pettavel MP Andrew Christie AC 
Sally Whyte SW Dennis Charman DC 
Sir William Atkinson SWA Gill Del Bravo GDB 
Andy Rennison AR Sean Callaghan SCa 
Dave McNamara DMcN   
Ian Heggs IH   
Remi Oladapo RO   
Muriel Rant (DfE) MR   
Andrea Keeping (Forum 
Secretary) 

AK   

 

 

2.00 Minutes of last meeting  

2.01 Last meeting was held 16 January 2013. Minutes approved.  

3.00 Final Budget 2013/2014  

3.01 Forum directed to documents:  

• Briefing paper – Approval of 2013-14 Budget 

• Appendix 1 – Proforma 

• Appendix 2 

• Appendix 3 

• Appendix 4  

AR presented the papers mentioned above to the Forum covering  the school 
funding arrangements for 2013/14.  

Appendix 1 is unchanged from the paper presented at the January 2013 
forum. 

Appendix 2 is the same data as submitted to the DfE. The School block lines 
have been changed to include business rates. 

It was noted that Randolph Beresford would be disadvantaged by the formula, 
Officers were tasked to work with the school to assess an appropriate 
amendment to support the school’s delivery of services. 

 

Agenda Item 1

Page 1



 London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 MEETING OF THE SCHOOLS FORUM 
 Tuesday 19th March 2013, Addison Annexe 

Minutes (Cont’d …) 
 

Page 2 of 2 

IH advised Forum that: 

• The Bridge Academy took over the management of The Courtyard 
(Langford’s 8 place unit) part way through the financial year.  

• The Bridge Academy has gained Academy status. 

• Henry Compton School has changed its name to Fulham College 
Boys’ School . 

It was noted that Queensmill School had opened a Key Stage 3 facility within 
the Fulham College Boys’ School, which had required funding from the 
contingency. 

Query raised as to whether Notional Funding was based purely on 
statements, AR advised it was not, it is based on FSM and IDACI. 

Query raised as to what happens to the funding when a child is statemented 
part way through the financial year. AR advised Forum that there is a national 
approach where the school does not receive the base funding of £6000, but 
would receive the top-up amount at the end of each term. Forum noted that 
this was a high risk strategy which had previously been identified. Forum 
agreed this should be reviewed at each Forum. 

Query raised as to whether IPS panels can reduce funding. AR advised that 
funding can go up or down and the reviews are taken through the SNAPT 
panel. This appears to work fairly as very few tribunals succeed. 

It was confirmed that for 2013 the pupil numbers for Queensmill’s new unit at 
Fulham Primary School are already built into Queensmill’s funding. 

Post 16 funding discussed. Their funding is transient. It was agreed this would 
be discussed at a future Forum when student movements were better known. 

Early Years block discussed. Some other boroughs were not currently 
providing 90% of the places assessed for 3+4 year olds in their boroughs, 
which was creating financial strains for them. This was not applicable to 
LBHF. Forum recommendation to create sub group for Early Years. 

Pupil Premium Grant discussed – There was a small decrease in the number 
of pupils claiming Free School Meals in the borough. There was confusion 
over the eligibility for FSM and whether families were claiming when entitled. 
The borough has provided clear guidance in the post to families, in various 
languages, and free school meal claims are processed by the benefits team to 
maximise claims. However the threshold of £15,860 disadvantages multi-
sibling families in London. 

Action: AR to clarify FSM rules. 

Discussion held around the effect on schools which have a very mobile 
population and the need to find a solution to balance schools with mobility 
without affecting schools with stability. To be raised at a future Forum. 

All recommendations were approved. 

5.00 Any Other Business  

5.01 None raised. 

Date of next meeting: to be held in June 2013. 

 

 

Page 2



Report to Forum 14 October 2013 
A Guide to Hammersmith and Fulham’s Funding Formula and Final DSG 2013/14 

By A Rennison 3BM 
 
1. Background 

The chair requested that a summary paper was prepared for Forum to help explain the 
funding formula to all members and schools within the Borough.  

2. Introduction 
2.1   School Funding has evolved and developed over a number of years, dating back to the 

introduction of Local Management of Schools via the Education Reform Act 1988.  The global 
funding for education was previously managed at a national Level through the Revenue 
Support Grant to Local Authorities, and is now achieved through the current day ‘Dedicated 
Schools Grant’.  Historically Governments have influenced their own modicum of control, to 
ensure funding was being directed to Education and Schools and specifically enabling a clear 
link back to their own priorities through targeted means such as the Standards Fund, School 
Standards Grant, Passporting, Pupil Premium etc. 

2.2 Notwithstanding the fact that national funding direction that has been set centrally, the 
majority of distribution of the funding for schools and education has been controlled locally.  
Each individual Local Authority developed its own unique formula to deliver funding in a way 
that responded to its own unique local challenges and priorities.   

2.3 The debate nationally has been on-going between a centralised national formula that has a 
modicum of adjustment for local cost drivers (such as area costs / sparsity) and a devolved 
formula that reflects at a macro level the local cost drivers, but the micro detail of the 
formula is left to individual Local Authorities (as was the position until the last two years).   

2.4 Historically the complexity of creating a national formula has outweighed the benefits, 
although more recently with the continuation at an accelerated rate of the Academies 
programme1  and the introduction of the Free School programme2 , the pressure has 
intensified on the Government to introduce a more transparent approach to funding.  
Historically, attempts to create a National Funding Formula have failed after the initial 
stages, although this time with the very different landscape of Academies and Free Schools, 
it looks certain that the national approach will continue to its full conclusion. 
Other papers on the agenda update on the continuing transition to a national approach. 

  

                                                           
1As at 1st September 3304schools have converted to Academies (DfE) as at 1st September 
2 As at 3rd September 174 Free Schools had been approved 

Agenda Item 3

Page 3



3. The Historic Funding Formula (previously under LBHF) 
3.1 The LBHF formula had evolved over the years and reflects decisions taken by Forum.  The 

sums established as part of the funding formula reflect the intention of Forum and the 
Council to ensure an equitable apportionment of funding across the phases and different 
school types. The categorisation of the different funding elements is set out below, the 
approach, with the exception of decoupled funding, which was part of our innovation, is 
consistent nationally.  The strategy to funding adopted by different boroughs will result in 
some of these elements being funded at varying levels reflecting the respective bias 
required.  Consistently over the years the boroughs funding levels and approach has usually 
been reasonably close to the expectations of national standards e.g. AWPU, Deprivation etc.   
We also drove forward, with some innovation, a reflection of our local priorities such as 
decoupled funding, to address the issue of a more consistent funding approach to help 
schools develop on-going provision for moderate learning needs. 

3.2 The key areas are listed below and explained in detail. 

• AWPU – Age Weighted Pupil Unit  
• SEN funding 
• Decoupled funding 
• Social Deprivation funding 
• Site funding and  
• School Specific funding 

4. AWPU – Age Weighted Pupil Units 
4.1 This is the unit value paid to each school per child.  It is weighted to reflect the different cost 

levels of educating all students at their respective ages.  When the AWPU levels for LBHF 
were originally set, they reflected the fact that much of the formula was driven by a more 
fixed factor to provide protection for the significant proportion of the boroughs schools that 
were small.  It also drove funding to support a more generic approach that children are 
uniform in their needs and therefore helped to ensure that enough funding was delivered 
per school to meet the basic adult / child ratios.   

4.2 To demonstrate this:  In the Secondary School sector the unit value paid for pupils in Year 
groups 7 - 10 is £3,631.19 per pupil and £3,667.53 for Year 11 pupils (linked to the external 
exam fees in KS4).  The levels of AWPU for Primary schools pupil is £2,306.53 for reception 
to year 2 and £2,343.06 for Years 3 - 6 (interestingly nationally over half have this balance 
and the other half weighted slightly to Key Stage 1).   The total funding driven through AWPU 
is £25.08m for Primary Pupils and £10.86m for Secondary.  This funding stream is contained 
within the basic per pupil funding in the new EFA funding formula. 

  

Page 4



 
 
5. SEN FUNDING 
5.1 This funding stream is targeted at named individuals with Statements of Special Education 

Needs and levels of support generally falling within bands 1 to 3.  This includes any funding 
for out of borough pupils.  The funding required by each school is provided by the Individual 
Progress unit and is needs based.  It is based on the extra support required by each pupil. 

5.2 Funding for bands 1, 2, and 3 for a year is £13,953, £11,073 and £9,230 respectively.  The 
support provided for bands 1,2 and 3 is 25, 20 and 16 hours of SSA and 9.3, 7.4 and 6.1 hours 
of individual support teacher respectively.  These bands were reduced in 2013/14 by the 
£6,000 “Notional” SEN that schools received under a targeted system.  In effect we recycled 
the £6,000 back to individual schools but for future years we have to adopt a more 
‘Formulaic approach’ that decouples the £6,000 from individual children clearer.  This is 
subject to a separate paper discussing strategy around SEN. 

5.3 This funding stream is moved into the High Needs Block under the new regime and from 
2014/15 schools are expected to already be providing the first £6k in kind from their internal 
school budgets that they should be receiving from the remodelled SEN approach. 

6. Decoupled Funding 
This funding is used for pupils that would fall within the lower SEN bands (4 – 6).  This policy 
and approach was developed to help schools manage the turbulence of small fluctuations in 
‘statemented’ pupils causing financial instability, but as importantly, the branding of a 
statement allows a means to extra funding.  It reduced the demand for statements and freed 
up time at both a school level and borough level to focus on faster processing for the 
services for children with more extreme needs.  As proxies for moderate learning needs the 
formula was modelled with a variety of options, until forum settled on the current 
methodology that uses a combination of  the number of pupils on roll, IDACI (Index of 
Deprivation affecting Children Indices) and low prior attainment. Decoupled funding is 
calculated by multiplying the number on roll by the number of pupils in the most deprived 
areas as defined by IDACI over 3 years. The average for each school is taken over the 3 year 
period and this gives each school a percentage of the total available resources.  This is 
repeated with the prior attainment data for English, Maths and Science over a rolling 3 year 
period and this gives each school a share of the available resources.  This ensures a 
smoothed out funding approach so changes are small and gradual, reflecting the usual 
aspects of most schools.  The system for higher incidence pupils was kept as the banding 
system because the costs and specific need for extra specialist support for children with 
more extreme difficulties was felt necessary by all parties. 

  

Page 5



7. Social Deprivation Funding 
Social deprivation funding has two elements: AEN and Personalisation funding. 

• The AEN pot is distributed using the following factors: IDACI, Stages of Fluency, 
pupils in care, pupils in bed and breakfast, mobility, asylum seekers, SEN school 
action and school action plus. 

• The personalisation pot is distributed as follows: 15% on rolls, 35% IDACI, 50% low 
prior attainment. Primary schools children achieving below level 2 KS1 and 
secondary school children below level 3 at any entry and performance at KS3. 

 
8. Site Costs 

 
Funding factors in this category includes grounds maintenance , cleaning and rates.  Grounds 
maintenance and cleaning are funded at  rate per square meter while rates are funded at 
actual cost for the year. 

 
9. School Specific Factors 
 
This includes a management package, funding for pupils in receipt of FSM, paid meal supplements, 
threshold payments MFG and falling rolls protection. 
 
10. The New Funding Formula Factors 2013/14 
10.1 A new funding regime was put into place, with the creation of 3 funding blocks, the Notional 

Schools Block, the High Needs Block and the Early Years Block. In order  to allocate the 
Notional School Block Budgets in 2013/14 all local authorities were required to submit a pro-
forma confirming the factors t they would  utilise in the allocation of their schools budgets 
from a set of factors prescribed by the Education Funding Agency. The factors relevant to 
Hammersmith and Fulham included: 

• Basic Entitlement per Pupil  - for Primary and Secondary School Pupils 
• Deprivation Funding using FSM / FSM6 or IDACI Bandings 
• Looked After Children 
• Low Attainment High Incidence  SEN 
• Mobility 
• Lump Sum 
• Split Sites 
• Rates 
• Historic Sixth Form Funding. 

10.2 At the Schools forum meeting held on July 10 2012, a strategy was agreed to enable the 
transfer of the old funding formula allocations to the new system.  The table below shows 
the mapping to the new EFA funding formula 

 

Page 6



New EFA Funding Elements Mapping of the Old  
Basic Entitlement per Pupil for Primary 
and Secondary School Age Pupils 

AWPU, Site Costs excluding Rates and Split site 
funding, Meals Subsidy Funding, Threshold 
Funding , Part of the Management Package less 
Lump sum funding and the AWPU / school 
specific  elements of the mainstreamed 
Standards Funds Grants. 

Deprivation Funding using FSM or FSM6 
and IDACI banding rates per pupil 

AEN, Social Deprivation Funding, FSM funding 
and the Social Deprivation and Personalisation 
elements of the mainstreamed grants. 

Looked After Children Looked After Children’s Element of the AEN 
Low Attainment High Incidence SEN Decoupled Funding 
Mobility Mobility factor of the AEN 
Lump Sum Part of the Management Package 
Split Sites Split Site Element of the Site Funding 
Rates Rates 
Historic Six Form Funding Historic funding to the William Morris Sixth Form 

 
Tables 1 and 2 shows how the 2012/13 Primary and  Secondary Schools  delegated budgets were 
transferred from the old into the new funding formula. 
The SEN funding for Bands 1 – 3 were transferred to the High Needs Block, the main change in this 
block going forward is that schools are expected to contribute the first £6,000 of the cost as part of 
their Schools Budget.  There is no attempt to reduce funding, it is purely an attempt by 
Government to ensure an extension nationally of the decoupled funding approach already in place 
in LBHF for moderate learning needs. 
The SEN strategy led by Alison Farmer will present and discuss options to ensure fair accountability 
and allocations of this in the future to balance the £6k movements from the high needs block into 
the School Block.   
This SEN is now contained within the Schools Block and is called Notional SEN funding. The funding 
for Nursery Schools and Classes were transferred to the Early Years Block. 
 
  

Page 7



 
The Final Pro-forma approved by the Schools Forum at the January 2013 and was the basis 
for the distribution of the Schools Budgets in March 2013. 

Notional Schools Block Funding Approved 
by Schools Forum 

Funding 
(£) 

Comments 

Schools Budgets  82,377,812  92.70% 
General Funds, centrally retained Schools 
Block and De-delegation 

 5,356,100  6.03% 

Recoupment Academies Share of Centrally 
retained Schools Budgets 

 473,747  0.51% 

Transfer to Early Years Block  539,897  0.62% 
Growth Funds for Bulge Classes  123,059  0.14% 
Total Schools Block  88,862,616  

 
The table below shows the analysis of the funding delegated to Schools in 2013/14 using the 
EFA pro-forma 

Funding 
Elements 

Primary Secondary Post 16 
Historical 
Funding 

Total Comments 

AWPU 33,204,051 24,021,649    
Ever 6 FSM 5,242,208 3,417,496    
IDACI 
Banding 

5,728,595 3,403,385    

High Incid/ 
Low Attain 
SEN 

1,532,608 656,469    

LAC 28,406 14,769    
Mobility 194,500 62,500    
Lump Sum 3,400,000 700,000    
Split Sites 32,705 0    
Rates 409,823 377,539    
WMSF   706,610   
Sub total 1 49,772,896 32,653,807 706,610   
Sub total 2    83,133,313  
Add MFG    504199  
Total 
Schools 
Funding 

   83,637512  

This Schools funding is the total before the de-delegated amount of £1.259m is adjusted. 
Less De-delegation   -1259,700  

Total 
Funds 
Delegated  

   82,377,812 Total 
amount 
delegated  

Page 8



 
 

Forum’s Approval of the Final DSG 2013/14 
The EFA announced the final DSG allocation in July 2013 and the Schools forum is required to 
approve the deployment  of the final DSG. As shown in the table below. 

Table  Forum's Approval of the Deployment of the 2013/14 Final DSG 
 

     

Schools Forum 
Approved 
Budget 

Funding Approved 
in March 2013 

Adjusted by 
EFA for 
Converter 
Academy 
Schools 

EFA 
Adjustsments 

Deployment of the 
Final DSG June 
2013  -for Forums 
approval 

          
Notional 
Schools Block 88,866,000 -22,730,000    66,136,000  

Early Years High 
Needs Block 11,502,000   -163,000  11,339,000  
High Needs 
Block 17,082,000 -1,250,000    15,832,000  
Post 16 Funding 697,000     697,000  
2 Year old CLA 2,845,000   12,000  2,857,000  
  120,992,000     96,861,000  

 
 

Actions  
 
1) Forum to approve the 2013/14 DSG Final 
  
2) Forum to advise on areas where they would recommend changes to the current funding 
model 
 
3) Forum to approve the movement of funds from the High Needs Block to the School 
Block of £1.3m which is the £6000 per pupil SEN element now classed as notional and 
subject to a funding arrangement to target appropriately to be developed. 

Page 9



 

 

 

1

 
LONDON BOROUGH OF HAMMERSMITH AND FULHAM 

 
SCHOOLS FORUM – 14 OCTOBER 2013 

 
REPORT BY DAVE MCNAMARA 

 
2014-15 REVENUE FUNDING ARRANGEMENTS  

– (Paper 1) SCHOOLS FUNDING FORMULA 
 

 
This paper is to update each of the Tri-Borough Schools Forums on the second phase 
of changes being implemented by the Department for Education (DfE) in relation to 
the Schools Funding Reforms.  The reforms must be in place for the funding period 
2014/15 and build on the changes already implemented for 2013/14. 
 
This paper is to update the schools forum on 2014-15 Revenue Funding Arrangements 
for 2014/15.  The second paper discusses the current DfE consultation on proposed 
changes to the schools funding formula.    

FOR INFORMATION 
 
 
 
1. Introduction: 
1.1 On 4 June 2013, the Department for Education published “School Funding 

Reform: Findings from the review of 2013 to 2014 financial year arrangements 
and changes for the 2014 to 2015 financial year”.  A further document was 
published in August 2013 “Summary of proposed changes to regulations and 
conditions of grant 2014-15”.   The two documents outline the proposals for 
2014/15 which are currently in the process of consultation. The consultation will 
conclude on the 11th of October 2013 with outcomes to be introduced from 1st 
January 2014 (see paper 2 on Revenue Funding Arrangements).   For the 
purpose of developing the 2014/15 funding model the proposals outlined in this 
report will be assumed to be implemented.  Should any proposals be amended, 
the schools forum will be updated accordingly and if necessary the funding 
model revisited.  The proposed school funding arrangements for 2014 /2015 
affecting the schools funding formula are detailed in this report. 

1.2 In summary the document provides details of additional changes that are 
expected to continue the momentum towards a national funding formula and to 
respond to concerns raised as part of the review of the 2013/14 
implementations. 

1.3 A further document was published on 8 July 2013, providing detailed guidance 
on high needs place funding arrangements for 5- to 25-year-olds: 2014 to 2015 
academic year.  High Needs funding is complicated across the 3 boroughs and 
an update elsewhere on this agenda will provide further information on 
additional High Needs reforms. 

 
Agenda Item 4

Page 10



 

 

 

2

 
2. Key changes for 2014/15 Schools Funding Formula. 
 
2.1 In summary the main changes which will influence the 2014/15 funding formula 

and its distribution of funding to schools are: 
• Prior Attainment,( Low cost high incidence SEN) 

 
Early Years Foundation Stage Profile  
- The EYFS has changed in 2013, so a change in definition is 
unavoidable. For the purpose of the schools funding data, the DfE will 
map the data to be consistent with the 2012/13 definition.    
 
English and Maths Level 4 Secondary  
- From 2014/15 this is changing to English OR Maths.  Currently the 
factor is English and Maths.  Expectation from the DfE is that this factor 
will now have a greater reach and support more pupils.  Consequential 
decisions for LA will be to determine the unit rates associated with each 
element and the overall value of funding to be distributed through this 
factor.                
 
IN LBHF this makes up part of the deprivation funding calculation so will 
need modelling as a significant portion of the low needs SEN funding is 
driven through this area 
 

• Looked After Children (LAC),  
 
From 2014/15 any LAC will attract this funding.  2013/14 funding models 
allow LA to choose from  
• LAC any length ,  
• LAC 6 months or more, 
• LAC 12 months  or more. 

 
Same value will continue to apply across primary and secondary schools.   
 
In LBHF the formula captures any LAC child therefore this has no further 
impact 
 

• Pupil Mobility  
 

– Currently all levels of mobility are funded as such all schools receive 
some level of funding through this factor. From 2014/15 this is restricted 
to mobility in excess of 10%.  So for example if a school has 12% 
mobility the school will attract funding at 2% (being 12% less 10% 
threshold).  Consequential decisions for LA will be to determine the unit 
rates associated with this factor as less schools should be eligible for this 
funding.      
 
In LBHF only a small element of the AEN funding is triggered by mobility 
£257k in total therefore the impact will be low, what it will do is target 
money to more disadvantaged schools        

Page 11



 

 

 

3

 
• A lump sum  

• From 2014/15 this is maximum of £175,000;  
• The Lump Sum Value can vary from 2014/15 for Primary and 

Secondary phases. 
 

This will have no impact as our lump sums are £100k across Primary 
and Secondary respectively therefore below threshold 

 
2.2 LA will also have an opportunity to review their Local Funding formula for 

2013/14 and determine the appropriateness of both factors and associated 
funding linked to each factor.  Including consideration of changes outlined 
above.   The DfE has now published all LA funding formula data which is 
available for benchmarking purposes.     
 

 
3 Submission of Pro -forma to DFE 
 
3.1 The DfE has placed a two stage requirement on LA to submit a Proforma of 

their 2014/15 Schools Funding Formula 
 
 Stage 1 Deadline 31st October 2013 
 
 Local Authorities are required to submit their 2014/15 budget proforma to the 

DFE.  It should be noted that LA will have an opportunity to change the unit 
rates but not the factors.  

 
3.2 The proforma must be agreed with Schools Forum following consultation with 

all bodies affected by the changes 
 

Stage 2 Deadline 21st January 2014 
 

 Local Authorities are required to submit their 2014/15 final budget proforma to 
the DFE.   
 
 

4 Consultation Process 
 
4.1 The deadlines imposed by the DfE restrict the consultation process to a 2 week 

process commencing following the Schools Forum meeting.  Responses will be 
necessary for the third week in October to enable officers to meet the DFE 
deadline.   

 
5 Proposed Funding Model 
 
5.1 Officers have undertaken initial modelling work to assess the impact of the DFE 

changes in particular the impact on a school by school basis and the impact on 
the overall MFG. 
 

Page 12



 

 

 

4

5.2 The modelling work is based on the 2013/14 (October 2012 data sets).  As 
such the information can only be used for exemplification and to assist in 
developing the 2014/15 formula.  A final model will be presented to Schools 
Forum at the January Budget Setting meeting.  
 

5.3 It should be noted that there will be an opportunity to review the funding rates 
associated with each factor once the October 2013 data is available and also 
the overall funding available to the schools block.  The changes prescribed 
above by the DfE, present very little change in the round to schools in LBHF. 
 
 
 

6 Recommendation 
 
Schools Forum is asked to 
 
Note: 
 
• The new requirements on LA to review their schools funding formula as 

summarised in section 2 of this report 
• The timelines for submission of the two stage process for submitting 

Schools Funding proforma as out outlined in section 3 
• The requirement for consultation as outlined in section 4 of this report 

Agree : 
• Consultation based on the factors in Appendix A of this report 
• Agree to the shortened time consultation as outlined in 4.1 
• To receive further updates as appropriate. 

 
 
 
Report Author: Dave Mcnamara [supported by 3BM] London Borough of Hammersmith 
and Fulham.  
 
 

Andrew Christie 
Tri-Borough Executive Director – Children’s Services 

 
Contact officer: Remi Oladapo FD 3BM  
Tel: 020 3436 2234  E-mail: remi.oladapo@3bm.co.uk 
 
 
 
  

Page 13



 

 

 

5

Appendix A  
 

 
 
 
 
 
Draft 2014/15 Local Schools Funding Formula 

 
London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 

 
 
 
 

Closing date for consultation 29th October 2013 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 14



 

 

 

6

 
 

Local Schools Funding Formula  
– London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 

 
2014/15 Consultation Process 

 
 
Introduction 
 
LBHF is required to submit a proforma return confirming the factors that the LA will 
utilise in the allocation of the Schools Budget Share for 2014/15. 
 
The DfE has placed a requirement on LA to consult with Schools including Academies 
and Free Schools prior to submission of the proforma.   The deadlines placed on LA 
are very tight to undertake a detailed review of the formula and gain agreement from 
internal approval process and with the Schools Forum. 
 
A meeting was held with the LBHF Schools Forum to  
 

A) Agree a consultation period covering the 15th October 2013 to 29th October 
2013.     

B) Agree an extraordinary meeting of the Schools Forum Working group to 
consider feedback from stakeholders if, in the opinion of the Chair of Schools 
Forum, required 

 
It should be noted that the LA is required to make a formal submission to the DFE by 
the 31st October 2013 to confirm which factors will be used in the 2014/15 LBHF local 
schools funding formula. 
 
Schools should note that the information provided for 2014/15 is modelled using 
 

• October 2012 data as the October 2013 data would not have been 
finalised. 

• 2013/14 DSG levels. 
 
Over the course of the next few months both the pupil data and the DSG will be 
updated. This may necessitate a revision of the unit rates.   LA will be allowed to 
reconsider the values attached to the unit rates as part of the second stage 
submission in January 2014.  However, LA will not be allowed to change the factors 
that have been agreed.       
 
For your information Appendix A outlines the current 2013/14 Local Schools 
Funding Formula for LBHF  
 
 
  

Page 15



 

 

 

7

 
Consultation on Changes 
 
1. DfE changes for 2014/15 
 
Continuing on from the significant reforms to schools funding in 2013/14 the DfE has 
undertaken a review based on consultation with stakeholders and analysis of LA 
2013/14 submitted Pro-forma data.  The DfE has published additional guidance in July 
and August 2013 outlining further changes for 2014/15, which the DfE consider are 
necessary in developing a national formula.    
       
In summary the main changes which will influence the 2014/15 funding formula and 
its distribution of funding to schools are: 
 

• Prior Attainment,( Low cost high incidence SEN) 
 
Early Years Foundation Stage Profile  
- The EYFS has changed in 2013, so a change in definition is 
unavoidable.  
 
English and Maths Level 4 Secondary  
- From 2014/15 this is changing to English OR Maths.  Currently the 
factor is English and Maths.  Expectation from the DfE is that this factor 
will now have a greater reach and support more pupils.  Consequential 
decisions for LA will be to determine the unit rates associated with each 
element and the overall value of funding to be distributed through this 
factor.              
 
Some modelling will be needed to assess the new rates in the final 
funding formula to reflect the different number of qualifying secondary 
pupils 

 
• Looked After Children (LAC),  

 
From 2014/15 any LAC will attract this funding currently funding model 
allows for LAC any length , LAC 6 months or more, LAC 12 months  or 
more. 
 
Same value will continue to apply to primary and secondary.   
 
LBHF formula is already compliant and therefore no further action is 
required.  
 

• Pupil Mobility  
 

– Currently all levels of mobility are funded as such all schools receive 
some level of funding through this factor.  From 2014/15 this is 
restricted to mobility in excess of 10%.  So for example if a school has 
12% mobility the school will attract funding at 2% (being 12% less 10% 
threshold).  Consequential decisions for LA will be to determine the unit 

Page 16



 

 

 

8

rates associated with this factor as less schools should be eligible for this 
funding.              

     
 

• A lump sum  
• From 2014/15 this is maximum of £175,000;  
• The level for Primary and Secondary does not need to be same. 

 
 

LBHF currently uses one lump sum (£100,000) for both Primary and 
Secondary Schools.  

            
  

Page 17



 

 

 

9

 
 Appendix A  - 2013/14 Local Schools Funding Formula 
 
Current Funding Formula  2013/2014 

  Factors LBHF 

  Units 
Unit 
Rate 

Total 
Factor 
Funding 

    £ £ 
Number of Schools 41     
        
Recoupment  Academies 6     
Mainstream 35     
        
Reception Uplift Yes     
        
Basic Entilement       
Primary 9,555 3,475 33,204,051 
Key Stage 3 2,774  5,113  14,183,920  
Key Stage 4    
  1,924  5,113  9,837,729  
        
Deprivation       
Primary FSM       
Primary FSM 6 4,527  1,158  5,242,208  
Secondary FSM       
Secondary FSM 6 2,003  1,706  3,417,496  
Primary IDACI SCORE 0.2 - .25 408  600  244,560  
Primary IDACI SCORE 0.25 - .03 602  650  391,365  
Primary IDACI SCORE 0.3 - .4 1,354  700  948,080  
Primary IDACI SCORE 0.4 - .5 1,473  750  1,104,675  
Primary IDACI SCORE 0.5 - .6 1,549  800  1,239,360  
Primary IDACI SCORE 0.6 - 1 2,118  850  1,800,640  
Secondary IDACI SCORE 0.2 - .25 194  850  164,475  
Secondary IDACI SCORE 0.25 - .03 316  900  284,400  
Secondary IDACI SCORE 0.3 - .4 641  950  609,140  
Secondary IDACI SCORE 0.4 - .5 653  1,000  653,300  
Secondary IDACI SCORE 0.5 - .6 635  1,100  697,950  
Secondary IDACI SCORE 0.6 - 1 864  1,150  994,060  
        
Looked After Children 54  800  43,175  
        
Low Attainment High Incidence       
Primary 1,892  810  1,532,608  
Secondary 381  1,725  656,469  
        
Mobility       

Page 18



 

 

 

10

Primary 778  250  194,500  
Secondary 250  250  62,500  
        
Lump Sum 41  100,000  4,100,000  
        
Split Sites     32,741  
        
Rates     787,362  
        
Sixth Form Funding     706,610  
        
Minimum Funding Guarantee     504,199  
        
Total Funding    83,637,548 
    
Less De-delegation (per EFA      -1,259,700  
        
Total Funding     82,377,873  
    
    

 
For reconciliation purposes: The De-delegated figure of £1,259,700 is included in the 
Basic Entitlement per Pupil at the rate of £68.18 for 9,238 Primary School pupils which 
excludes Reception Pupils Numbers uplift and £134.07 for 4,698 Secondary School 
pupil. The amount deducted from each sector is £629,850.34 (primary) and 
£629,849.74 (secondary).  
 
The table below shows the allocation of funding across the relative factor headings: 
 

 
LBHF 

Total Allocation 
Proportion of 
Funding 

  £ % 
Basic Entitlement 

57,225,700 
 69.47% 

Deprivation 17,791,709 21.60% 
Looked After Children 43,175  0.051% 
Low Cost High Incidence SEN 2,189,076 2.66% 
English as an Additional Language 0  0% 
Mobility 257,000  .031% 
Lump Sum 4,100,000  4.98% 
Split Sites 32,740 0.04% 
Rates 787,362 0.96% 
Sixth Form 706,610  0.86% 
Minimum Funding Guarantee 504,199  0.61% 
De – Delegation -1,259,700 -1.53% 
  82,377,873  100% 

Page 19



 

 

 

11

Local Schools Funding Formula  
– London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 

 
2014/15 Consultation Process (Phase 1) 

 
Form for Completion and Return 
 
Section A  
 
Please complete the following details: 
 
School Name  
Name  
Designation  
Email  
Phone number  
 
The LA is required to make a formal submission to the DFE by the 31st October 2013 
to confirm which factors will be used in the 2014/15 LBHF local schools funding 
formula. The value to be applied to each factor will be the subject of a separate 
process that will allow schools to register their views 
 
 
 Section B 
 
Consultation Questions: 
 
1. DfE changes for 2014/15 
 
QUESTION 1 -Prior Attainment : English and Maths Level 4   
 
Secondary Phase Schools only  
Factor currently used for allocation of resources for prior attainment is English and 
Maths.  DfE has redefined this factor for 2014/15 to be English or Maths. 
 
The revised data (using October 2012 for exemplification shows) that the number of 
pupils has changed from 172 to 470.25.    As the change is significant, technically the 
definition is now a new factor. 
 
 
Do you agree to the continuation of SECONDARY ATTAINMENT as a factor for 
2014/15?  
 
Schools Forum Recommendation is YES (?) 
Yes  No  
 
 

Page 20



 

 

 

12

QUESTION 2 - Prior Attainment: Primary Schools 
 
Secondary Phase Schools only  
 
 
Do you agree to the continuation of PRIMARY ATTAINMENT as a factor for 
2014/15?  
 
Schools Forum Recommendation is YES (?) 
Yes  No  
 
 
QUESTION 3 -Looked After Children 
   
LBHF Formula remains compliant.  Proposal is to continue to include Looked after 
Children in the 2014/15 formula    
Schools Forum Recommendation is YES (?) 
Yes  No  
 
QUESTION 4 - Pupil Mobility SECONDARY SCHOOLS  
 
Do you feel that mobility should be used as a factor in the LBHF formula? If so, which 
of the following factors would you prefer to be reduced as a result? 
 
Our recommendation is to continue to use the mobility as a factor in the formula. 
 
Yes exclude factor from Secondary 
Formula 

 Include factor for Secondary 
Formula  

 
If your answer is to include the factor please 
advise suggested  funding for secondary schools 
mobility 

 

Which Factor should be adjusted to fund pupil 
mobility? 

 
 
 
QUESTION 5 - Pupil Mobility PRIMARY SCHOOLS  
 
 
The definition of mobility has changed to include only those schools where mobility is 
greater than 10% of the number on roll. Do you want to use this factor in the 2014/15 
budget compilation or do you want it excluded? 
 
Our recommendation is to continue to use the mobility as a factor in the formula. 
 
 
 
 

Yes exclude factor from Primary 
Formula 

 Include factor for Primary 
Formula  

 
If your answer is to include the factor please  

Page 21



 

 

 

13

advise suggested  funding for primary schools 
mobility 
Which Factor should be adjusted to fund pupil 
mobility? 

 
 
 
QUESTION 6  
LBHF lump sum is currently £100,000 for all schools . Under the new regulations for 
2014/15 the lump sum can be a maximum of £175k, and can vary from the primary 
schools rate.   
 
It is not proposed to increase the lump sum.  However, there is an opportunity to 
review the lump sum. 
 
What is your preferred lump sum level?        
 
QUESTION 6 a  -Lump Sum PRIMARY 
 
£150,000-£125000  £125,000-£100,000  
£100,000- £50,000  £50,000 or lower  
 
QUESTION 6 b –  Lump Sum SECONDARY  
 
£150,000-£125000  £125,000-£100,000  
£100,000- £50,000  £50,000 or lower  
 
QUESTION 9 – IDACI as a factor 
 
 
IDACI.  IDACI is a measure of deprivation assessed on the location of the pupils 
postcode. All postcodes are ranked on their relative levels of deprivation based on a 
national scoring system. Under the IDACI ranking 7 bands of deprivation are 
identified. Band zero i.e less than a ranking of 20 is not deemed to be deprived and 
therefore does not constitute part of the factor.  The remaining 6 bands are deemed 
as having deprivation.  The table below shows the 6 bands and the relative associated 
deprivation. 
 
LBHF currently uses all IDACI bandings with different rates per bands for both Primary 
and Secondary Schools.   
 
As the funding targeted through this factor is £9,132,005 it is recommended that no 
change should be made to the current unit rates and this factor should remain at the 
same levels as 2013/14.  If you think the rates should be changed please answer the 
questions below. 
 
Q - Do you agree that IDACI should continue be included as a factor?   
Q- If yes, which bandings should attract  more or less funding 
IDACI 1 (20-25)  IDACI 2 (25-30)  
IDACI 3 (30-40)  IDACI 4 (40-50)  
IDACI 5 (50-60)  IDACI 6 (60-100)  

Page 22



 

 

 

14

Q  - Do you support the redistribution of funding towards a relative greater weighting 
on bands 5 and 6  
YES  No  
 
 
Please return this section to :   
 
Name  
Address 
Email  
Phone number 
 
 
 
 
 

Thank you for taking the time to complete this consultation 
 
 
 

Page 23



 

 

 

1

 
LONDON BOROUGH OF HAMMERSMITH AND FULHAM  

 
SCHOOLS FORUM – 14 OCTOBER 2013 

 
REPORT BY DAVE MCNAMARA 

 
2014-15 REVENUE FUNDING ARRANGEMENTS  

– (Paper 2) Proposed Changes to School and Early Years Finance 
Regulations  

 
 
This paper is to update each of the Tri-Borough Schools Forums on the second phase of 
changes being implemented by the Department for Education (DfE) in relation to the 
Schools Funding Reforms.  The reforms must be in place for the funding period 2014/15 
and build on the changes already implemented for 2013/14. 
 
This is second of three papers updating the schools forum on 2014-15 Revenue Funding 
Arrangements for 2014/15 and focuses on the consultation paper “proposed changes to 
school and early years finance regulations”.  
     

FOR INFORMATION 
 
 
 
1. Introduction: 
 
1.1 On 4 June,  Dfe announced a number of changes to the school funding system in 

2014-15. DfE is now consulting on regulations to give effect to those changes, 
as well as some additional adjustments to the arrangements for schools and early 
years finance.  

1.2 The draft School and Early Years Finance (England) Regulations 2013 are attached, 
together with additional grant conditions for the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). 
The regulations for the most part reflect the decisions announced in June (see 
paper 1). These are included in the attached summary of changes. The summary 
also shows DfE are proposing changes that were not previously announced. DfE is 
seeking LA views on these proposals. 

1.3 The consultation period will run through to 11 October 2013. DfE intention is for 
the regulations to come into force by 1 January 2014.  

1.4 The key purpose of this report is to update the schools forum on the total list of 
changes which are likely to become effective from January 2014 and regulate the 
operation of the DSG from 2014/15. 

 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 5

Page 24



 

 

 

2

2 Key Changes 
 
2.1 Department for Education has published two reports in August 2013.  The reports  

titled  
a) 2014-15 Revenue Funding Arrangements – Additional information for Local 

Authorities 
b) Schools and Early Years Finance  - Summary of proposed changes to 

regulations and conditions of grant for 2014-15 
2.2 Whist the DfE is engaging in a consultation process which concludes on the 11th 

October 2013, in reality the changes are expected to be implemented as part of the 
The School and Early Years Finance (England) Regulations 2013.   As such no 
formal response is expected to be made to the DFE.  

2.3 The majority of changes have been discussed in detail in the report titled  2014-15 
Revenue  Funding  Arrangements’  Paper 1    

 
2.4 In summary the proposed changes to the School and Early Years Finance (England) 

Regulations 2013 are listed below.   
    
• Transfers responsibility for school meals to schools. 
• Require the election of a representative of providers of 16 to 19 education to the 

schools forum, and to remove the inclusion of a representative of the local 
authority’s 14 to 19 partnership on the forum.  

• Require local authorities to make an initial determination of their 2014-15 schools 
budget, individual schools budget and the amount of each school’s budget share by 
28th February 2014 (except in relation to special schools, pupil referral units, etc). 
In the previous regulations the date for doing so was 15th March. The date for 
informing schools of their budget shares also moves from 15th March to 28th 
February. 

• Another change is that the determination of amounts included in budget shares in 
relation to sixth form funding is excluded from these determinations. Sixth form 
funding calculations will have to be done within a reasonable period after the 
Secretary of State has informed the authority of the allocation of Sixth Form Grant.  

• The deadline for informing special schools and pupil referral units of their budgets 
moves from 15th March to 31st March. 

• Unspent money from the 2013-14 growth and infant class size funds into the 2014-
15 individual schools budget, so that it is recycled to schools. Local authorities can 
carry over to 2014-15 unspent de-delegated central expenditure to be used for the 
same purpose as it was used in 2013-14. In other words, it can be used for de-
delegated services without having to allocate through the formula again. This 
responds to representations that money that maintained schools de-delegate should 
continue to be available for the use of maintained schools. 

• Requires local authorities, in identifying funding for SEN pupils in individual primary 
and secondary school budgets (the notional SEN budget), to calculate that sum 
with reference to a threshold of £6,000. Schools are expected to meet the costs of 
the additional support required by pupils with SEN up to that cost threshold.  

Page 25



 

 

 

3

• Prevents local authorities from redetermining a school’s or early years provider’s 
2014-15 budget once it has been set, except in specific circumstances. This 
provision was introduced for 2013-14 but there has been some confusion about it 
so we are clarifying the position.  

• The definition of “pupils” for regulation 14 and elsewhere (other than 
regulation 17 on early years) has been amended to clarify that pupils only 
count if they are single registered or dual main registered at the school.  

• SEN places, whether filled or unfilled, do not count towards a school’s pupil 
numbers for the purpose of calculating its budget through the mainstream local 
funding formula. For 2013-14 the regulation provided that pupils in SEN places did 
not count. The change is to avoid double funding.  

• The basic per pupil amount (the age-weighted pupil unit) in a local authority’s 
formula must be at least £2000 for primary and £3000 for secondary pupil and a 
flat rate will apply to all Primary pupils.  

• Maintained special schools, the separate calculation of funding for sixth form 
places ceases with effect from 1st August 2014, and all places (including sixth 
form places) other than hospital education places will then attract £10,000 per 
annum 

• The change to a flat rate £10,000 for all pre- and post-16 places will take effect 
from 1st August 2014. The regulations will apply this to maintained special 
schools. The Education Funding Agency (EFA) will also apply this to the funding 
of special academies and free schools and of non-maintained special schools. 
We will keep under review whether to extend this to other specialist post-16 
places in future 

• Ability for local authorities to retain funding for CRC allowances for schools 
centrally has been deleted since schools will be excluded from the CRC scheme 
with effect from 1 April 2014. It has been replaced with a provision allowing 
authorities to retain funding for licences purchased centrally by the Secretary of 
State, following the introduction of the new Copyright Licensing Agency and 
Music Publishers Association licences in 2013-14.  

• local authorities to set a lump sum of up to £175,000 and set a different lump 
sum for primary and secondary schools. For 2013-14 the lump sum limit was 
£200,000 and had to be the same for primary and secondary schools.  

• Regulations reflect the use of data from the new early years foundation stage 
profile in deciding whether a pupil attracts prior attainment funding.  

• Regulations allows pupils who did not achieve level 4 in mathematics or English 
to attract prior attainment funding. In 2013-14 the policy was that only those 
who did not achieve a level 4 in both English and mathematics attracted the 
funding.  

• The allocation of funding through the mobility factors applies where more than 
10% of pupils in a school are mobile. For 2013-14 the factors applied where a 
school had any number of mobile pupils.  

• Where two or more schools merge in 2013-14, the local authority should pay the 
merged school a lump sum equal to 85% of the two lump sums that the schools 
would have received in 2014-15 if they had not merged. Local authorities can 

Page 26



 

 

 

4

apply to the Secretary of State to adjust the lump sum in more complex 
situations where schools have in effect replaced others.  

• The sum to be determined for an excluded pupil in a sixth form is £4,000 on an 
annual basis. This sum has been brought into line with the base funding for a 
full-time pupil in the academic year 2013/14. local authorities can retain a falling 
rolls fund for good or outstanding schools (including academies) if the schools’ 
capacity is likely to be needed within the next three years to meet rising pupil 
numbers. 

• Pupils who were being looked after on 31st March 2013, regardless of how long 
they had been looked after, can attract funding through the looked after children 
factor. In 2013-14 local authorities had a choice of whether to apply the factor to 
those who had been looked after for at least a day, at least six months or at least 
12 months.  

• Provides for the new sparsity factor. This is not relevant for LBHF   
• Regulations have been expanded to include exempt early education providers. This 

reflects the revised Early Education and Childcare: Statutory Guidance to Local 
Authorities, which comes into effect in September 2013. Section A4 of this guidance 
makes clear that LAs should fund providers who have exemptions from the Early 
Years Foundation Stage Learning and Development requirements if a parent wants 
their child to attend that provider. The change to the draft finance regulations 
allows this funding to count as part of the individual schools budget.  

• LAs to vary funding paid to providers of funded early education if the number of 
children admitted by a provider is in excess of any number agreed by the LA. This 
provision, by potentially reducing the funding paid for some children, risks 
constraining parental choice about where to access their funded early education.  

• Schools that opened in the previous seven financial years and are still adding year 
groups will be exempt from the capping of budgets under regulation 19(4) to pay 
for the minimum funding guarantee. This is because the capping of budgets for 
schools in such circumstances on a per pupil basis can produce distorting effects.  
 

2.5 2014-15 DSG Additional conditions of grant 
 
2.5.1 In addition to the change to the Regulations there are changes to the conditions of 

grant which hare listed below.  
 
• (a) the authority must maintain a single formula for funding both maintained 

schools and Academies in its area;  
• (b) in constructing the formula, the authority must take account of the 

circumstances of all Academies and maintained schools in its area;  
• (c) the formula must allocate at least 80% of funding through pupil-led factors 

(single per pupil amount, social deprivation, prior attainment, English as an 
additional language, pupil mobility, looked after children, differential salaries of 
teachers near London);  

Page 27



 

 

 

5

• (d) any limiting or scaling back of the funding of schools and Academies that gain 
from the formula must not exceed in total the cost of funding the minimum funding 
guarantee for schools and Academies entitled to the MFG;  

• (e) in using funding held centrally within DSG, other than funding that has been de-
delegated by maintained schools, the authority must treat maintained schools and 
Academies to which recoupment applies on an equivalent basis;  

• (f) in making arrangements for funding young people with high needs, the authority 
must treat those placed in maintained provision, in Academies and Free Schools, in 
the FE sector, and in non-maintained and independent provision on a fair and 
equivalent basis;  

• (g) in deciding on top-up funding rates for the pupils it will place in special schools 
maintained by the Authority and Special Academies formerly maintained by the 
authority, the authority must ensure that the rates for each school are set no lower 
than at such a rate or rates that, if all the pupils in the school or Academy were 
placed by the authority, and the total number and type of places remained the 
same in the two financial years, the school or Academy’s budget would reduce by 
no more than 1.5% in cash between 2013-14 and 2014-15;  

• (h) when a pupil who requires top-up funding has already been placed in an 
institution and is in receipt of top-up funding from the authority at 31 March 2014, 
the authority must continue the agreement with the institution to make such top-up 
payments until such time as the pupil has left the institution, or the contract is 
replaced by another. When such a pupil is placed by the authority in an institution 
at a later date, the authority must likewise enter into such an agreement;  

• (i) when making top-up payments to institutions for high needs pupils, the authority 
must make the payments in a timely fashion on a basis agreed with the institution, 
which must be monthly unless otherwise agreed. 

 
3 Recommendations 
 

The Schools Forum is asked to note the content of this report for information.  
 
 

Page 28



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

School Balances 2013 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Report to School Forum 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Agenda Item 7

Page 29



School Revenue Balances 
 
Introduction 
 
In 2007 the DfE introduced limits on uncommitted carry forwards for all schools, 
except Nursery schools which were not mentioned.   
 
The Schools Forum agreed to adopt the DfE guideline limits of uncommitted 
balances at 5% for Secondary Schools and 8% for Primary/Special Schools before 
any claw back was put in place. 
 
The raw data shown in Appendix A demonstrates the total balances held in schools 
of 17% as at 31st March 2013.  Schools Forum should note that the raw data figures 
are misleading as they include all the capital allocation and funding that schools 
have identified for on-going projects.   
 
As with every year Children’s Services Department collect information from schools 
on how much of their balances are committed for specific projects, which can be 
offset against their total balances.  The committed amounts reported by schools 
and the impact on the raw data to create a realistic balance for the schools 
(uncommitted) are shown at Appendix B.  The table shows with only a few 
exceptions most schools in LBHF having uncommitted balances within the guidance 
figures. 
 
The table at Appendix C gives a breakdown of the amounts reported by schools as 
being committed and the projects the funds have been assigned to, including 
where appropriate, Capital funding.   This will enable Forum to take account of the 
spending in year and apply clawback if appropriate. 
 
Other factors that Forum may wish to take into account when looking at these 
figures are: 
 

1. Capital grants, both council and external sources are included in the raw 
data figures and these amounts have been identified as committed where 
appropriate in the tables.  

 
2. Schools have also increased the number of extended services they run, i.e. 

Play Centres, Breakfast Clubs and afterschool clubs, again these are 
funded through some funding from the LA plus income received by the 
school from Parents/Carers.  These funds are all run through the main 
school account and so appear in these figures.  Due to the uncertain 
future of any funding for these services schools do try and put any 
balances in these areas into a contingency to maintain the clubs when/if 
the funding is reduced. 

 
3. The breakdown shows where schools have identified balances that have 

been set aside to fund building and premises improvements.    
 
 

Page 30



 Appendix 1 
 
Raw Carry Forward Balances 12/13

Nursery Schools Income Carry Forward Carry forward as %
Above DfE 
Guidline 
Limits

Bayonne -610,369 -227,390 37% Yes
James Lee -584,007 -251,818 43% Yes
Randolph Beresford -2,157,611 -720,882 33% Yes
Vanessa -821,382 -276,682 34% Yes
Nursery Total -4,173,368 -1,476,772 35%

Primary Schools Income Carry Forward Carry forward as %
Above DfE 
Guidline 
Limits

Addison -3,139,377 -568,021 18% Yes
All Saints -1,175,245 -57,635 5% No
Avonmore -1,402,897 -494,205 35% Yes
Brackenbury -3,006,800 -318,513 11% Yes
Canberra -2,812,531 -100,508 4% No
Flora Gardens -2,095,693 -270,704 13% Yes
Fulham Primary -2,787,486 -581,380 21% Yes
Good Shepherd -1,698,232 -384,153 23% Yes
Greenside -1,473,636 -221,513 15% Yes
Holy Cross -2,008,408 -135,216 7% No
John Betts -1,790,377 -328,146 18% Yes
Kenmont -1,870,002 -506,482 27% Yes
Langford -2,244,246 -73,740 3% No
Larmenier -2,127,238 -345,622 16% Yes
Lena Gardens -1,603,272 -116,694 7% No
Melcombe -2,585,340 -265,011 10% Yes
Miles Coverdale -1,991,001 -582,327 29% Yes
New Kings -1,486,797 -271,950 18% Yes
Normand Croft -2,773,864 -874,086 32% Yes
Old Oak -2,299,635 -249,450 11% Yes
Pope John -1,525,780 -258,177 17% Yes
Queens Manor -2,415,410 -1,096,277 45% Yes
Sir John Lillie -3,068,103 -623,812 20% Yes
St Augustines -1,110,456 -107,428 10% Yes
St Johns -1,710,919 -245,508 14% Yes
St Marys -1,347,046 -84,690 6% No
St Pauls -1,590,845 -165,916 10% Yes
St Peters -1,490,540 -371,800 25% Yes
St Stephens -1,409,885 -182,407 13% Yes
St Thomas -2,048,058 -648,559 32% Yes
Sullivan -1,914,403 -346,610 18% Yes
Wendell -3,148,047 -868,694 28% Yes
Wormholt -2,655,902 -750,248 28% Yes
Primary Total -67,807,470 -12,495,483 18%  

Page 31



Secondary Schools Income Carry Forward Carry forward as %
Above DfE 
Guidline 
Limits

Hurlingham & Chelsea -6,935,399 -1,957,744 28% Yes
Phoenix High -8,634,636 -33,707 0% No
William Morris Academy -6,479,323 -837,369 13% Yes
Secondary Total -22,049,358 -2,828,820 13%

Special Schools Income Carry Forward Carry forward as %
Above DfE 
Guidline 
Limits

Cambridge -2,051,106 -607,059 30% Yes
Jack Tizzard -2,505,028 -321,005 13% Yes
Queensmill -3,821,486 -620,782 16% Yes
The Bridge -4,549,298 -173,872 4% No
Wood Lane -1,719,515 -205,699 12% Yes
Special Total -14,646,434 -1,928,417 13%

Grand Total -108,676,630 -18,729,492 17%  
 

Page 32



  
 Appendix 2 
School Balances- Uncommitted Carry Forward Levels 12-13

Nursery Schools Income Carry Forward
Carry 

forward as 
%

Committed 
Amount as 
reported by 

School

Uncommitted Carry 
Forward

% Carry Forward 
Uncommitted

Bayonne -610,369 -227,390 37% -196,197 -31,193 5%
James Lee -584,007 -251,818 43% -26,518 -225,300 39%
Randolph Beresford -2,157,611 -720,882 33% -556,669 -164,213 8%
Vanessa -821,382 -276,682 34% -177,000 -99,682 12%
Nursery Total -4,173,368 -1,476,772 35% -956,384 -520,388 12%

Primary Schools Income Carry Forward
Carry 

forward as 
%

Committed 
Amount as 
reported by 

School

Uncommitted Carry 
Forward

% Carry Forward 
Uncommitted

Addison -3,139,377 -568,021 18% -512,500 -55,521 2%
All Saints -1,175,245 -57,635 5% -57,635 -0 0%
Avonmore -1,402,897 -494,205 35% -363,719 -130,486 9%
Brackenbury -3,006,800 -318,513 11% -179,300 -139,213 5%
Canberra -2,812,531 -100,508 4% -77,000 -23,508 1%
Flora Gardens -2,095,693 -270,704 13% -157,381 -113,323 5%
Fulham Primary -2,787,486 -581,380 21% -581,380 0 0%
Good Shepherd -1,698,232 -384,153 23% -328,000 -56,153 3%
Greenside -1,473,636 -221,513 15% -165,000 -56,513 4%
Holy Cross -2,008,408 -135,216 7% 0 -135,216 7%
John Betts -1,790,377 -328,146 18% -295,370 -32,776 2%
Kenmont -1,870,002 -506,482 27% -421,422 -85,060 5%
Langford -2,244,246 -73,740 3% -45,350 -28,390 1%
Larmenier -2,127,238 -345,622 16% -190,000 -155,622 7%
Lena Gardens -1,603,272 -116,694 7% -91,788 -24,906 2%
Melcombe -2,585,340 -265,011 10% -124,131 -140,880 5%
Miles Coverdale -1,991,001 -582,327 29% -473,672 -108,655 5%
New Kings -1,486,797 -271,950 18% -175,909 -96,041 6%
Normand Croft -2,773,864 -874,086 32% -789,000 -85,086 3%
Old Oak -2,299,635 -249,450 11% -153,200 -96,250 4%
Pope John -1,525,780 -258,177 17% -153,656 -104,521 7%
Queens Manor -2,415,410 -1,096,277 45% -901,841 -194,436 8%
Sir John Lillie -3,068,103 -623,812 20% -451,736 -172,076 6%
St Augustines -1,110,456 -107,428 10% -70,000 -37,428 3%
St Johns -1,710,919 -245,508 14% -176,358 -69,150 4%
St Marys -1,347,046 -84,690 6% -10,686 -74,004 5%
St Pauls -1,590,845 -165,916 10% -87,957 -77,959 5%
St Peters -1,490,540 -371,800 25% -305,866 -65,934 4%
St Stephens -1,409,885 -182,407 13% -103,576 -78,831 6%
St Thomas -2,048,058 -648,559 32% -533,466 -115,093 6%
Sullivan -1,914,403 -346,610 18% -206,000 -140,610 7%
Wendell -3,148,047 -868,694 28% -567,000 -301,694 10%
Wormholt -2,655,902 -750,248 28% -599,898 -150,350 6%
Primary Total -67,807,470 -12,495,483 18% -9,349,797 -3,145,686 5%
 
  

Page 33



Secondary Schools Income Carry Forward
Carry 

forward as 
%

Committed 
Amount as 
reported by 

School

Uncommitted Carry 
Forward

% Carry Forward 
Uncommitted

Hurlingham & Chelsea -6,935,399 -1,957,744 28% -1,855,810 -101,934 1%
Phoenix High -8,634,636 -33,707 0% -33,532 -175 0%
William Morris Academy -6,479,323 -837,369 13% -536,276 -301,093 5%
Secondary Total -22,049,358 -2,828,820 13% -2,425,618 -403,202 2%

Special Schools Income Carry Forward
Carry 

forward as 
%

Committed 
Amount as 
reported by 

School

Uncommitted Carry 
Forward

% Carry Forward 
Uncommitted

Cambridge -2,051,106 -607,059 30% -607,059 0 0%
Jack Tizzard -2,505,028 -321,005 13% -214,447 -106,558 4%
Queensmill (see note 1) -3,821,486 -620,782 16% 0 -620,782 16%
The Bridge (see note 2) -4,549,298 -173,872 4% 0 -173,872 4%
Wood Lane -1,719,515 -205,699 12% -6,734 -198,965 12%
Special Total -14,646,434 -1,928,417 13% -828,240 -1,100,177 8%
Grand Total -108,676,630 -18,729,492 17% -13,560,039 -5,169,453 5%
 
Notes: 
 

1. Schools in transition awaiting another move in 2014 
2. Went to Academy status on 2nd April 2013 

 
  

Page 34



 Appendix 3 
Breakdown of Committed Balances 12-13

Nursery Schools
Bayonne Nursery- Breakdown of Committed Funds
Capital Basic Needs 50,000
Windows & Doors 50,000
Toilets refurbishment 24,641
Curriculum IT 10,000
Forest School 23,323
Used to balance budget 38,233

TOTAL 196,197
James Lee Nursery- Breakdown of Committed Funds
Capital Works 26,518
TOTAL 26,518
Randolph Beresford- Breakdown of Committed Funds

Capital Basic Needs 5,750
Under 3s Expansion plans 200,000
Nursery Garden Project 100,000
Under 3s Garden Project 25,000
Family Centre Gardens Project 25,000
Possible Redundancy Costs 50,000
Possible Transition Costs 10,000
ICT Hardware 10,000
Recruitment and Advertising 10,000
General Premises Improvements 42,141
Consultancy Childrens Centre 20,000
Forest School Project 26,778
Play project premises 15,000
Parenting 10,000
Disadvantage Subsidy 7,000

TOTAL 556,669
Vanessa Nursery- Breakdown of Committed Funds
Capital Works 177,000
TOTAL 177,000  
 
 
 
 
  

Page 35



Breakdown of Committed Balances 12-13

Primary Schools
Addison- Breakdown of Committed Funds
Capital Basic Needs 512,500
TOTAL 512,500
All Saints- Breakdown of Committed Funds
Balancing of Budget 57,635
TOTAL 57,635
Avonmore- Breakdown of Committed Funds
Capital Basic Needs 117,600
Lights refurbishment 10,000
Redecoration Programme 30,000
Premises Works 180,000
It Projects 14,000
External Clubs 5,000
Extra Curricular Activities 2,119
Additional Spl and Ep Support 2,000
School Journey 3,000
TOTAL 363,719
Brackenbury- Breakdown of Committed Funds
Capital Basic Needs 98,300
Library 20,000
Fencing 5,000
Nursery 15,000
HT Office 3,000
Staff Toilets 5,000
Shed Roof 10,000
Nursery playground 8,000
Hall 15,000
TOTAL 179,300
Canberra- Breakdown of Committed Funds
Capital Works 77,000
TOTAL 77,000  
 
Flora Gardens- Breakdown of Committed Funds

Capital Works 110,200
Childrens Centre 47,181
TOTAL 157,381  
 
 

Page 36



Fulham- Breakdown of Committed Funds
Capital Works 581,380
TOTAL 581,380
Good Shepherd- Breakdown of Committed Funds
Capital Works 328,000
TOTAL 328,000
Greenside- Breakdown of Committed Funds
Capital Project 130,000
Headteacher Funding 35,000
TOTAL 165,000
John Betts- Breakdown of Committed Funds
Bulge Class Building 160,370
Capital Schools of Choice 105,000
Capital Priority Condition 30,000
TOTAL 295,370
Kenmont- Breakdown of Committed Funds
Playcentre Reserve 25,000
Priority Condition Needs 361,000
Travel 5,022
School Refurbishments 25,000
Clubs & Uniforms 5,400
TOTAL 421,422
Langford- Breakdown of Committed Funds
Priority Condition Needs 45,350
TOTAL 45,350
Larmenier- Breakdown of Committed Funds
New Building 150,000
Redecoration 15,000
Furniture 10,000
Software & Apps 15,000
TOTAL 190,000
Lena Gardens- Breakdown of Committed Funds
Capital Project 85,188
Not Specified! 6,600
TOTAL 91,788  
 
 
Melcombe- Breakdown of Committed Funds   

Page 37



    
Capital Project 67,000  
Not Specified! 57,131  
    
TOTAL 124,131  
    
Miles Coverdale- Breakdown of Committed Funds   
    
Capital Basic Needs 56,000  
Windows 13/14 130,000  
Windows 14/15 150,000  
School Journey & Outings 30,000  
IT Projects 25,000  
Summer School Expenses 15,000  
Furniture 6,000  
Music Specialist 19,500  
Library Books 10,000  
Arts 15,000  
Resources and Apparatus 14,000  
Uniform 3,172  
    
TOTAL 473,672  
    
New Kings- Breakdown of Committed Funds   
    
Travel 6,000  
Devolved Formula Capital 13,800  
Priority Condition Needs 100,100  
Clubs & Fundraising 10,700  
School Refurbishments 45,309  
    
TOTAL 175,909  
    
Normand Croft- Breakdown of Committed Funds   
    
IT Equipment 15,000  
Premises Improvements 250,000  
Capital Basic Needs 524,000  
    
TOTAL 789,000  
    
Old Oak- Breakdown of Committed Funds   
    
Capital Works 153,200  
    
TOTAL 153,200  

 
  

Page 38



Pope John- Breakdown of Committed Funds
Devolved Formula Capital funding 27,584
Premises Improvement/Refurbishment programme 50,000
Teaching School Alliance funding 14,172
ICT purchases 45,000
Admin IT (new server + workstations) 10,000
Curriculum expenditure (carried forward to summer term) 6,900
TOTAL 153,656
Queensmanor- Breakdown of Committed Funds
Capital Works 651,441
Support Staff Maternity Cover 36,000
ICT Suite 84,000
Redecoration Works 130,400
TOTAL 901,841
Sir John Lillie- Breakdown of Committed Funds
Attic Comversion & Playground Improvements 370,000
Headteacher Funding 81,736
TOTAL 451,736
St Augustines- Breakdown of Committed Funds
IT Equipment 30,000
Premises Improvements 40,000
TOTAL 70,000
St Johns- Breakdown of Committed Funds
Capital Bid Funding 100,000
Confucius 6,100
Playground Improvements 8,258
Breakfast Club 12,000
School Refurbishments 50,000
TOTAL 176,358
St Marys- Breakdown of Committed Funds
Boiler 3,000
Clubs, Docesan Funds, Meals, PTA 7,700
TOTAL 10,700  
 
  

Page 39



St Pauls- Breakdown of Committed Funds
Premises Improvements 39,200
Buybacks 10,700
Curriculum Initiatives 3,357
Administration Expenses 34,700
TOTAL 87,957
St Peters- Breakdown of Committed Funds
Capital Basic Needs 223,000
Curriculum Initiatives 72,866
Premises Improvements 10,000
TOTAL 305,866
St Stephens- Breakdown of Committed Funds
Playcentre Reserve 79,400
School Development 19,400
School Counsellor 2,676
Extended Breakfast Club 2,100
TOTAL 103,576
St Thomas- Breakdown of Committed Funds
Capital Bid Funding 92,000
Playground Project 100,000
Furniture & Fittings 108,000
Classroom Phase 2 120,000
ICT 60,000
Training & Travel 3,466
Curriculum Initiatives 50,000
TOTAL 533,466
Sulivan- Breakdown of Committed Funds
Refurbishments 76,000
Capital Bid Funding 75,000
ICT 35,000
Curriculum Initiatives 20,000
TOTAL 206,000
Wendell- Breakdown of Committed Funds
Breakfast Club/Family Centree contirbutions 110,000
Capital Works 457,000
TOTAL 567,000  
 
  

Page 40



Wormholt- Breakdown of Committed Funds

Capital Works 125,000
Identified Training 17,000
Family Support 37,440
Breakfast Club 40,208
MFL Project 35,000
Pupil Premium 20,000
Bulge Class 325,250
TOTAL 599,898  
 
  

Page 41



Breakdown of Committed Balances 12-13

Secondary Schools
Hurlingham & Chelsea- Breakdown of Committed Funds
Capital Projects 1st Year 1,069,000
Capital Projects 2nd Year 200,000
ICT Upgrade 150,349
Small Building Improvements 109,367
Salix Loan Repayment 17,674
Library Restock 21,438
On Going SPD Programme 80,000
Specific Grant STP & Club Programme 17,441
School Reorganisation Project on going 100,000
Extended Services/off site provision 90,541
TOTAL 1,855,810
Phoenix High- Breakdown of Committed Funds
Extended Services 33,532
TOTAL 33,532
William Morris- Breakdown of Committed Funds
Capital 268,741
Specific Grant (inc Bursary) 108,000
SEN late Income 60,000
Science Lab upgrades 53,000
Electrical Works 24,750
Power Supply 13,285
Renovation works/Water Tanks 4,500
PAT Testing 4,000
TOTAL 536,276  
 
  

Page 42



Breakdown of Committed Balances 12-13

Special Schools
Cambridge- Breakdown of Committed Funds
Capital Projects 300,000
Premises Maintenance 200,000
High Level Teaching Assistants 107,059
TOTAL 607,059
Jack Tizzard- Breakdown of Committed Funds
Lifts 161,000
Therapy Support 23,800
Bursary Fund 21,247
Training & Travel 9,400
TOTAL 215,447
Woodlane- Breakdown of Committed Funds
Devolved Formula Capital 6,734
TOTAL 6,734  

Page 43



 

 

 

1

 
LONDON BOROUGH OF HAMMERSMITH AND FULHAM 

 
SCHOOLS FORUM – 14 OCTOBER 2013 

 
 UPDATE ON THE 2 YEAR OLD PROGRAMME EXPANSION 

 
 
 

The 2 year old programme is a targeted offer aimed at improving the 
attainment and life chances of some of the most disadvantaged children 
and supporting low income working parents.  From 1 September, 2013, 
20% of 2-year-olds nationally are eligible for funded early learning places.  
The expansion of the programme (previously a pilot) is managed by a tri-
borough steering group and this paper provides an update on the progress 
of the expansion in Hammersmith and Fulham. 

For Information 
 

1. Confirmation on Eligibility Criteria for September 2014 
 

1.1 As from September 2013, eligibility is based on meeting the criteria 
for free schools meals (FSM), having a child protection plan or being 
looked after by the local authority.  The criteria for September 2014 
was confirmed last month and will be expanded to include: 
 
� Children meeting eligibility criteria for FSM 
� Families receiving Working Tax Credit and have annual gross 
earnings of no more than £16,190 a year 

� Children receiving a current statement of Special Educational 
Need (SEN) or an education, health and care plan 

� Children attracting Disability Living Allowance 
� Children leaving care through special guardianship or through an 
adoption or residence order 

 
1.2 In terms of projecting the number of eligible families for 2014, the 

Department for Education (DfE) had previously informed local 
authorities that they should plan for double the amount of eligible 
families projected in each borough that meet the 20% entitlement 
(see Table 1: Supply of 2 Year Old Programme Places against 
Current Demand Sept 13).  However, more accurate data is 
expected later this year. 

 
2.  DfE Eligibility Data Release, Current Supply of Places and 

Take Up for September 2013 
 
2.1 The DfE have been issuing data releases to Local Authorities which 

provide names and address of all eligible families.  The data release 
breaks down the entitlement into the number of terms each family 
would be able to access funding, determined by the term in which 

A 
Agenda Item 8

Page 44



 

 

 

2

their child turns 2.  This means that some of these children will only 
access a place for one term before transitioning onto the 3 & 4 year 
old funded offer.  

 
2.2 Table 1 shows the current number of places available as at the end 

of September 2013, broken down into children already occupying a 
place from the previous term/s, new starters and vacancies. 

 
2.3    The table also includes the original DfE estimate on eligible families 

(November 2012) against the current DfE data release on the 
number of eligible children residing in each borough. 

 
Table 1 – Supply of 2 Year Old Programme Places against Current 
Demand (Sept 13) 
 
Estimated 

No. of 
Eligible 
Families 

who meet 
the 20% 

entitlement 
(Nov 12) 

No. of 
families 
listed in 
Sept 13 
DfE data 
release  

 

Total 
number 
of 2 

year old 
places 
in the 
borough 

Total 
number 
of places 
purchased 
in RBKC  

Breakdown of Current Places 
Continuing 
Places 

New 
Starters 

Vacancies 

585 417 185 2 76 76 35 
 
2.4 Based on the current DfE data release figures the borough has 

created 44% of places for the number of eligible families.  However, 
locally there is not yet sufficient demand for places. 

 
2.5 The data release, which should now be updated and distributed on a 

termly basis, was not previously deemed as comprehensive by the 
DfE, due to the complexity involved in matching large and very 
different Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) data sets.  It 
was therefore difficult to use for the development of sustainable 
places in the relevant parts of the borough. 

 
2.6 Hempsells, the organisation contracted by the DfE to support local 

authorities to deliver the 2 year old programme, has confirmed that 
the data is now as comprehensive as it possibly can be and the next 
data release for children eligible for January 2014 is expected to be 
issued in mid-November. 

 
2.7 As table 1 illustrates there are currently 35 places that may be 

available for eligible families who submit applications1 during this 
term.  There is no waiting list for eligible families seeking places at 
participating settings who do not currently have vacancies. 

 
                                                 
1 Because places are spot purchased the number of vacancies can fluctuate if providers can fill places 
with fee-paying children. 

Page 45



 

 

 

3

2.7    Officers anticipate a further 62 places will be available in three 
children’s centres by January 14 and work continues with other early 
years providers in the borough to develop further places. 

 
2.7 Local authorities are still encouraged to capacity build based on the 

initial DfE estimates as the number of eligible families may fluctuate 
termly, but the latest data release shows that the current number of 
eligible families is approximately 70% of the original DfE estimates 
for all three of the Tri borough Local Authorities.  

 
2.8   Hempsells have been asked to clarify whether other London 

boroughs are reporting a similar discrepancy between estimated 
number of eligible families and actual families identified on the data 
release. 

 
3.  Identified Risks up to September 2014: 
 
 Insufficient Number of Places 
 
3.1   Now that the eligibility data release is as comprehensive as possible, 

analysis will be completed on potential levels of demand within the 
borough against the supply of places and a monthly update will be 
maintained. 

 
3.2  This work will inform future capacity building, but there is a risk that 

there could be future high levels of demand in areas where there are 
not sufficient places and the borough will need to continue engaging 
current and new PVI providers as well as schools.   

 
3.3    Availability of places tends to vary throughout the year.  For 

example 76 children have accessed a new place in September, but 
this is due to a high number of places being available as three and 
four years olds move into maintained nursery and reception places.   

 
3.4  It will be a challenge to ensure there will be enough available places 

for the forthcoming Spring and Summer terms if there is limited 
movement into the maintained sector.  Capacity building for families 
who will meet the expanded eligibility criteria for September 2014 
also needs to be considered, but clarity will be required on the 
projected numbers of families. 

 
 Hourly Rate  
 
3.5   The current level of funding may not be sufficient to attract new 

providers to join the programme.  It was anticipated that the unit 
cost exercise, which was commissioned by the DfE, and delivered by 
the National Day Nursery Association (NDNA) would now be 
available so that it could inform the funding formula for 2014/15.  
However there has been a delay due to anomalies in the data sets 

Page 46



 

 

 

4

which are currently being reviewed and work continues on this piece 
of analysis. 

 
 Spot Purchasing  
 
3.6   The borough needs to continue to spot purchase while a pattern of 

potential demand and actual take up of places emerges over the 
coming terms.  As a result some providers have been reticent in 
offering more places for the programme, especially if they can be 
filled by fee paying parents. 

 
3.6   However, now that the data release is more comprehensive, officers 

will be able to target new providers in wards where potential 
demand outstrips current supply and assure providers that places 
are likely to be taken up.    

 
3.7   A marketing campaign, working in partnership with children’s 

centres, health visitors and other professionals, will be launched to 
actively market the entitlement to these eligible families in order to 
maximise uptake.  Information is already available on the borough 
website and through local professionals.   

 
 Impact of benefits cap 
 
3.8   It is unclear at this stage whether the current level of eligible 

families have been reduced, as current figures are lower than the 
original DfE estimates, and whether this downward trend will 
continue.  Again this will be monitored via the monthly updates. 

 
4.  Future updates 
 
4.1  Officers will return to the Schools Forum in January 2014 with an 

update on the targeted 2 year old offer including analysis of spend 
to date and forecasts. 

 
Margaret Murphy 

Lead Commissioner, Children and Early Years 
 

Andrew Christie 
Tri-Borough Executive Director – Children’s Services 

 
 
Contact officer: Jacqueline Devine, Early Years Business Support 
Manager, Tel: 020 7598 4773   

Page 47



 
 
 

 
High Needs Block Funding for Pupils 

 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 This section covers funding for high needs pupils in the following 

education provision:  
- additional funding to mainstream schools and early years 

providers for pupils with high needs 
- special schools 
- resource bases in mainstream schools 
- pupil referral units 
- post 16 provision for special needs  

 
 

1.2 Funding for high needs pupils will be on a ‘place plus’ model, with 
schools or settings receiving an amount per place from the main school 
formula with the remainder paid as ‘top-up’ on a per-pupil basis. 
 

1.3 The Local Authority is keen to work with head teachers to take forward a 
the approach to distribution of the High Needs Block to best meet the 
needs of young people with SEN (0-25 years).  It is proposed that the 
associated risk of the additional financial responsibility for children from 0 
and up to 25 years is best managed through the local authority and 
schools working together in partnership. The Local Authority is keen to 
enable head teachers to share the management of the effects of spending 
decisions on the system as a whole and encourages collective ownership 
of the high needs block for the benefit of all RBKC’s children and young 
people with high needs.  

 
1.4 It is proposed that the Local Authority and representative head teachers 

form a High Needs Reference group, to monitor the distribution of high 
needs spend against pupil distribution and to jointly manage a top sliced 
SEN ‘contingency’ for those schools with limited high needs budget.  The 
focus of the High Needs Reference Group will be support for the inclusion 
of children with SEN in exceptional circumstances.  The effect of a small 
top slice will be included in the High Needs Block modelling.  

2. Funding for High Needs pupils in mainstream schools  
  
2.1 High needs pupils in mainstream schools will be funded through three 

elements: 
• Element 1 – the basic per-pupil entitlement (per-pupil funding) 

funded through the main school formula (‘place’ funding),  

Agenda Item 10

Page 48



 2 

• Element 2 – additional educational support funding from the 
school’s notional SEN budget set at £6,000 (for additional support 
provision over and above the standard offer of teaching and 
learning).  The expectation is that per pupil funding + £6000 = 
approx. £10K, the benchmark for ‘high needs’ (‘place’ funding). 

• Element 3 is top-up funding which is paid by the relevant local 
authority from their high needs block on a per-pupil basis (‘plus’ 
funding).   

2.2  
 
3. Mainstream Schools – reception to year 11 ‘place plus’ funding. 
3.1  Schools will receive funding for high needs pupils through Elements 1 

and 2 (in the schools block and received by schools in their budget) 
see diagram in Appendix.   

 
The schools’ block notional SEN funding is intended as an allocation to 
meet the needs of pupils with predictable additional learning needs and 
is to cover the cost of children’s provision up to £6,000 per pupil (a 
figure determined by Government and excludes the base (AWPU) 
funding received for all pupils).  
 

3.2 Top up funding is for those pupils’ whose provision costs over and 
above £6,000 (Element 2).  This is referred to as ‘high needs top-up’. 

 
3.3 The Authority will delegate a proportion of the Top Up funding for pupils 

who are RBKC residents and have a need for provision that costs over 
and above £6000 and up to a total of £12,000 (£6K Schools’ Block and 
£6K High Needs Block delegated).  The formula by which this resource 
is distributed is outlined below, is to be discussed with Schools Forum 
and has been the subject of working group consideration.  

 
3.6  The retention of a formula to distribute part of the high needs top-up is 

seen by the authority as key in targeting support and accountability for 
provision for individuals with high needs and retains autonomy in 
organising provision through resources delegated to schools for 
children with predictable additional learning needs.   

 
3.6   The formula for distributing the delegated part of the high needs top-up 

will be as follows: 
• 60% prior attainment – weighting on individual learning needs to 

reflect targeted top-up for individual additional learning support 
(one year or a three year average)  

• 40% number on roll – individual targeted support for children 
with syndromes, conditions which are not related to deprivation 
and/or necessarily prior attainment 

 
The Local Authority proposes accounting for the delegated High Needs 
Block through an agreement with schools about expectations of the 

Page 49



 3 

service delivered for children with SEN.  This agreement will form the 
basis of part of the Local Authority’s published Local Offer. 

3.4.1 For RBKC/Westminster/Hammersmith and Fulham pupils with 
exceptional needs requiring provision costed at over £12K plus AWPU, 
funding will be distributed on the basis of placement of children with a 
Statement of SEN (from September 2014 an Education, Health and 
Care plan), according to two bands (Band 1; Band 2) top up funding.   

 
3.3 As mentioned above, under the new model, if a high need pupil from 

another borough attends a RBKC/Westminster/Hammersmith and 
Fulham school, then the school will be responsible for charging the 
relevant local authority direct for any additional costs over and above 
the £6,000.  This replaces the current system of inter-authority 
recoupment, whereby RBKC/Westminster/Hammersmith and Fulham 
funds all pupils with a Statement of SEN and then reclaims funding 
from other authorities on behalf of schools.  If schools would like 
support in charging other Boroughs, a recoupment service can be 
bought-in from the Local Authority (charged at 5% of the value for 
mainstream).  

 
 
4. Special Schools 

Special schools and resource bases will not in future have delegated 
budgets on the same basis as mainstream schools.  They will get 
£10,000 per place pre-16 plus top-up funding for each pupil they have.  

 
4.1 Future funding will be based on a place-plus model as required by the 

Government.  The authority will continue to agree with each school the 
number of places to be provided for the year ahead. An initial £10,000 
funding per place funding will then be provided by the authority from 
the High needs Block, for maintained special schools.  The balance of 
funding, referred to as ‘top up’, will come from the home authority of 
each pupil and only paid for actual pupils in school. The amount of top-
up can in theory vary according to the needs of the individual pupil.  

 
Special schools will themselves be responsible for collecting the top up 
funding from relevant authorities, unless the school chooses to buy-in 
the services of the Local Authority to undertake charging other LA’s on 
its’ behalf. 

 
4.3 Special school and/or resource bases could be supported in managing 

temporary vacancies through the agreement of schools forum to fund 
vacancies at a fifty per cent top up value for a time-limited period e.g. 
two years.  

 
6. Pupil Referral Units 
 
6.1 Pupil Referral Units (PRUs) will be subject to the same funding 

arrangements as special schools, except that the base funding will be 
£8,000 rather than £10,000 per place. The figure of £8,000 has been 
set by the Government and reflects their research into the cost of 
PRUs vs special schools.    

Page 50



 4 

 
6.2 Our proposal for RBKC is to fund PRU provision as a combination of 

place-plus and a service to reflect the combined places and outreach 
nature of the service. 

 
6.3 PRUs funded as place-plus will receive £8,000 base funding for each 

place, with top-up funding from the local authority for each pupil in 
place, when they are in place. The numbers of pupils actually 
occupying the provision would be reviewed on a termly basis.  It is 
understood that the PRU population by its’ nature is fluctuating, as 
such it is proposed that provided the actual number of places filled is 
not less than and/or does not exceed the agreed place number by 20% 
that a total budget is agreed for a total number of places. As with 
special schools, we would actively review each special school’s income 
during the year and may, depending on circumstance, consider with 
them where other services could be commissioned from them in the 
event of predicted shortfall. 

 
7. Resource Bases in Mainstream Schools and Outreach Services 
 
7.1 Under the new system, resource bases/units in mainstream schools will 

be funded in the same way as special schools.  Pupils attending a 
resource base will no longer be included in the mainstream main 
funding formula. Instead all funding for that pupil will be provided from 
the high needs block under the place plus model, i.e. £10,000 base 
funding for each agreed place plus top up on a pupil by pupil basis.   

 
7.2 We propose funding resource base places on the ‘place plus’ model, 

whilst funding the outreach service aspects of resource bases as a 
service funded from the high needs block. 

 
 

8. Early Years (pupils in nursery provision) 
 
8.1 The main funding for pupils in nurseries will continue to be provided via 

the early years single funding formula. This provides funding calculated 
on an hourly rate up to 15 hours a week (the national free offer) or 25 
hours if the child is allocated one of the full time places.  Additional 
funding will be provided on a pupil by pupil basis to cover the cost of 
special needs. 

 
9. Post 16 
 
9.1 Under separate proposals, the government is transferring the 

responsibility for 16-19 high needs provision to local authorities. These 
proposals introduce a place-plus approach to post-16 high needs 
provision.  All providers catering for post-16 high needs pupils and 
students, in mainstream and specialist settings, will receive 
mainstream per-student funding through the national 16-19 funding 
system.  

 
9.2 Mainstream FE providers and school and Academy sixth forms will be 

expected to contribute the first £6,000 to the cost of additional support 

Page 51



 5 

provision required by a high needs pupil or student, the same as with 
primary and secondary age mainstream schools, funded from the 
national 16-19 funding system.  Specialist FE providers will receive 
additional support funding of £6,000 for each student placed in the 
institution from the EFA. 

 
9.3 Top-up funding for students placed in either mainstream or specialist 

settings will be provided by the commissioning local authority from 
within its HNB, paid on a per-student basis according to the 
assessment of the student’s needs.  In order to fund this, funding 
previously held by the EFA has transferred to the DSG.  The Local 
Authority proposes developing a banded funding model for high needs 
students whose Top Up provision costs more than £6K (Elements 1 & 
2) and £19K.  For those students whose provision costs more than 
£19K resources will be allocated on a case by case basis, through the 
Local Authority’s SEN Panel decision-making process.  

 

Page 52



 6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 53



 7

Funding model for SEN in Mainstream schools 

Pupils with additional needs up to PPE + 6k 

Pupils with no 
additional needs

Pupils with additional needs up to delegated threshold?

Pupils with additional needs above  delegated threshold – band 1?

Pupils with additional needs above  delegated threshold – band 2?

AWPU or Per pupil 
entitlement (PPE) £6k from notional SEN budget

DSG – Schools Block

HNB funding 
delegated? (by 

formula? £value?)
HNB top-up –

band 1 ? (£value)
HNB top-up –

band 2? (£value)

DSG – High Needs Block

Funding 
received in 
the school’s 

budget

Funded 
received in 
addition to 
the school’s 

budget

Element  1 Element 2              Element 3       Element 4       Element 5

P
age 54



 8

P
age 55



 9 

 

Page 56



 

 

 

 
London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 

Schools 2012/13 Year End Summary Report 
June 2013 

 
This management letter has been prepared on the basis of the limitations set out on page 15. 

 

 

This report and the work connected therewith are subject to the Terms and Conditions of 
the Engagement Letter dated 14 April 2011 between London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham and Deloitte & Touche Public Sector Internal Audit Limited under an 
arrangement agreed with Croydon Council.  The report is confidential and produced 
solely for the use of London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham.  Therefore you should 
not, without our prior written consent, refer to or use our name or this document for any 
other purpose, disclose them or refer to them in any prospectus or other document, or 
make them available or communicate them to any other party.  No other party is entitled 
to rely on our document for any purpose whatsoever and thus we accept no liability to 
any other party who is shown or gains access to this document. 

 

Agenda Item 11

Page 57



 SUMMARY REPORT 
 

Management Letter – 2012/13 Schools Year End Summary Report 1 
 

1. Executive Summary 
 
1.1. The Schools Audit Strategy consists of a three-year plan to visit all schools at least once during this 

period. From September 2011, the audit programme has been broadly based on the Schools 
Financial Value Standard (SFVS) assessment supplemented by a programme of thematic audits 
covering school meals income and leasing arrangements in schools. 

1.2. The SFVS replaces the Financial Management Standard in Schools (FMSiS) and has been 
designed in conjunction with schools to assist them in managing their finances and to give 
assurance that they have secure financial management in place. Minor amendments have been 
made to the 2012/13 audit coverage so that coverage is sufficient to provide assurance against the 
SFVS. 

1.3. In 2012/13, our standard assurance opinions changed from Nil, Limited, Substantial and Full to Nil, 
Limited, Satisfactory and Substantial in order to be consistent with tri-borough audit colleagues. 
The new assurance opinions are broadly comparable with the new opinions and for the purposes of 
consistency when making comparisons we have used the new assurance opinions in all cases. 
 

1.4. School Audit Visits and Follow Up 
1.4.1. Overall the results in 2012/13 had declined since the previous year, with 12 schools audited 

receiving a Satisfactory Assurance opinion and four schools receiving a Limited assurance 
opinion. This compares to all 22 schools receiving a Satisfactory Assurance opinion in 
2011/12. 

1.4.2. When looking at the results for all schools over the last three years, four schools have 
received a Limited assurance opinion and only one a Nil Assurance opinion. All four Limited 
Assurance opinions in the last three years were provided in 2012/13.  

1.4.3. Three schools audited this year have improved their assurance opinion from Limited to 
Satisfactory when compared to the previous visit in 2009/10 and three school’s assurance 
opinions have moved from Satisfactory to Limited. One school (Fulham Primary School) has 
received a Limited Assurance opinion in its last two audit visits. A recommendation has been 
raised regarding this. 

1.4.4. 11 priority 1 recommendations were raised as a result of the schools audits 2012/13 in 
comparison to nine in 2011/12. Of these 11 recommendations, five have been reported as 
implemented and four are from reports currently at draft stage. 

1.4.5. Although no full follow up visits needed to be undertaken in 2012/13, two priority 1 
recommendations raised in previous Satisfactory or Substantial Assurance reports were 
followed up. One of the applicable recommendations had been fully implemented and one 
recommendation was not implemented. 

1.4.6. The most commonly occurring issues in audit reports were: 
• Evidence of value for money not being retained for large value purchases; 
• The adequacy of school meals income records and the audit trail between income 

collected and cash banked; 
• Official orders not being raised on the SIMS system; 
• Payments not being made to suppliers promptly; and 
• No evidence of Governing Body approval of key documents such as the School 

Development Plan. 

Page 58



 SUMMARY REPORT 
 

Management Letter – 2012/13 Schools Year End Summary Report 2 
 

 
1.5. Additional Audit Work Undertaken Related to Schools 

1.5.1. An audit of Central Financial Management of Schools was undertaken. A Satisfactory 
Assurance opinion was provided with three priority 2 and one priority 3 recommendations 
being raised. 

1.5.2. Thematic testing of leasing arrangements was undertaken during school audit visits. From 
the 12 schools visited at the time the results were compiled recommendations were raised in 
ten instances; in each of the ten cases the School had not sought advice or approval from 
the Council. 

1.5.3. As part of the 2012/13 internal audit plan, we also undertook a comparison of the schools 
audit test programmes used by LBHF, RBKC and WCC. This comparison was used to assist 
in developing a consistent test programme across the tri-borough arrangement. A new test 
programme has been developed and our aim is to use this new test programme in LBHF and 
RBKC in 2013/14. 

 
1.6. Proposed Management Actions 

1.6.1. This report has proposed a number of actions for management to consider that have not 
been raised in individual audit reports.  The main recommendations are that the Children’s 
Services department should take proactive action, in collaboration with schools, to improve 
control and address the common areas of weakness identified. This may also include 
providing fraud awareness training to schools’ staff. 

1.6.2. Furthermore, as the Schools Management Service was considered a source of assurance 
for the Council with regards to financial management in schools, management should 
consider whether the same level of independence and assurance can be provided under the 
new ELM arrangement or whether alternative sources of assurance are required. 

Page 59



 SUMMARY REPORT 
 

Management Letter – 2012/13 Schools Year End Summary Report 3 
 

MAIN REPORT 
 
2. Introduction 

 
2.1. This report gives an overall summary of the results of the work we have undertaken on schools 

during the 2012/13 financial year. This includes a summary of: 
• School audit visits and follow up work; 
• Additional audit work related to schools; and 
• Further action for management to consider. 

 
3. Results of School Audit Visits and Follow Up Visits 

 
3.1. Results of School Audit Visits 

3.1.1. A summary of the schools audited in 2012/13, with the results of their most recent OFSTED 
inspection, is shown in the table at Appendix A. Furthermore, a summary of assurance 
opinions provided over the last four years covering all schools can be seen in Appendix C. 

3.1.2. Overall, the results in 2012/13 had declined since the previous year, with 12 schools audited 
receiving a Satisfactory Assurance opinion and four schools receiving a Limited assurance 
opinion. This compares to all 22 schools receiving a satisfactory assurance opinion in 
2011/12. 

3.1.3. When looking at the results over the last three years, four schools have received a Limited 
assurance opinion and only one a Nil Assurance opinion, with all four Limited Assurance 
opinions being provided in 2012/13. 

3.1.4. Three schools audited this year have improved their assurance opinion from Limited to 
Satisfactory when compared to the previous visit in 2009/10 and three school’s assurance 
opinions have moved from Satisfactory to Limited. One school (Fulham Primary School) has 
received a Limited Assurance opinion in its last two audit visits. 

3.1.5. 11 priority 1 recommendations were raised as a result of the schools audits 2012/13, in 
comparison to nine in 2011/12. Of these 11 recommendations, seven have been reported as 
implemented, two are from reports currently at draft stage and two were not due as at the 
time of writing. The priority 1 recommendations raised covered the following themes: 
• Reconciliations not being undertaken between income collected and cash banked and / 

or an inadequate separation of duties in the income collection and banking process; 
• Quotes and tenders not being obtained / retained for large value purchases; 
• Bank reconciliations not being undertaken; and 
• Budget monitoring not being undertaken. 

 
3.1.6. The following recurring issues were identified across a number of schools visited: 

• The required number of quotes or tenders and Governing Body approval not being 
obtained and retained for large value purchases and a number of cases where suppliers 
and contractors had been used for several years without the market being tested to 
confirm that value for money was still being received (nine schools); 

• The adequacy of school meals income records, inadequate separation of duties and an 
incomplete or unclear audit trail between income collected and cash banked (eight 

Page 60



 SUMMARY REPORT 
 

Management Letter – 2012/13 Schools Year End Summary Report 4 
 

schools); 
• Official orders not being raised on the SIMS system (nine schools). It is acknowledged 

that the School’s Finance Manual does not require primary schools to raise official 
orders on SIMs; however, this is considered good practice; 

• Payments not being made to suppliers promptly (seven schools); and 
• Evidence of Governing Body approval of key documents such as the School 

Development Plan (eight schools). 
3.1.7. The Children’s Services department should take proactive action, in collaboration with 

schools, to address common areas of control weakness and improve the control 
environment within schools.  Internal Audit will offer their support where required. 

 
3.2. Results of School Follow Up Work 

3.2.1. Although no full follow up visits were required in 2012/13, two priority 1 recommendations 
raised in substantial assurance reports were followed up to confirm implementation. One 
recommendation had been fully implemented and one had not been implemented. The 
results of our follow up work can be seen in Appendix B. 

3.2.2. Internal Audit are available to offer advice and support where there is any doubt over the 
implementation of recommendations. 

 
4. The Schools Financial Value Standard (SFVS) 

4.1. The new Schools Financial Value Standard (SFVS) was launched by the Department for Education 
(DfE) on 18 July 2011 and has been available for schools to use since September 2011. The SFVS 
replaces the Financial Management Standard in Schools (FMSiS), which was withdrawn by the 
Secretary of State with effect from 15 November 2010. 

4.2. Maintained schools are required to complete the SFVS once a year. Those schools which never 
attained FMSiS were required to complete and submit the SFVS to their local authority by 31 March 
2012. For all other maintained schools, the first submission was required by March 2013. An 
annual review is required thereafter for all schools.  

4.3. The Chief Finance Officer is required to submit an assurance statement to the DfE by 31 May 2013 
declaring: 
• How many Schools have not submitted returns in 2012/13 and the reason why; and 
• That a system of audit for schools is in place that gives adequate assurance over their 

standards of financial management and the regularity and propriety of their spending. 
4.4. In December 2012, Internal Audit undertook work to assess the procedures in place within the 

Council to monitor submission of SFVS returns and prepare the return/submission to the 
Department for Education.  

4.5. At the time of our audit work there was no system in place to monitor receipt of SFVS returns and 
responsibility for this task had not been assigned. As a result of this, the target date for submitting 
the Council’s SFVS return was missed. One priority 1 recommendation was raised as a result of 
our work to implement a system for monitoring SFVS returns. 

  

Page 61



 SUMMARY REPORT 
 

Management Letter – 2012/13 Schools Year End Summary Report 5 
 

5. Employee-Led Mutual 
5.1. Staff providing support services for schools across the three boroughs have set themselves up as 

an employee-led mutual (ELM), which will become known as 3BM upon trading. At a meeting on 4 
March 2013, Cabinet approved a private sector partner to work with the mutual, Prospects Services 
Limited. The mutual went live on 2 April 2013. 

5.2. The Cabinet report defines the core services to be provided to the Council as: 
• To LBHF strategic consultancy advice on: 
o Schools organisation; 
o Education aspects of borough regeneration projects; 
o Asset management of schools sites; and 
o The overarching schools capital programme. 

• To LBHF and LBHF Schools Forum strategic advice on: 
o Schools financial management; and 
o Schools resources strategies. 

• To RBKC: 
o ICT strategic support for Family and Children’s Services. 

5.3. In addition, the ELM will make a range of specified traded services available to schools, if they wish 
to purchase them. These traded services will be commissioned by schools directly and include 
financial consultancy and accountancy services; Information management services, and ICT and 
Network Support services. 

5.4. The Council may also commission the ELM to undertake programme management of schools 
capital projects. 

5.5. Internal Audit had planned to undertake audit work on the new ELM in 2011/12 and 2012/13; 
however, due to delays in setting up the ELM, audit work has been deferred to 2013/14. 

5.6. As the Schools Management Service was considered a source of assurance for the Council with 
regards to financial management in schools, management should consider whether the same level 
of independence and assurance can be provided under the new arrangement or whether 
alternative sources of scrutiny and assurance are required. 

 
6. Additional Audit Work Undertaken Related to Schools 

 
6.1. Central Financial Management of Schools 

6.1.1. An audit of Central Financial Management of Schools was undertaken. A Satisfactory 
Assurance opinion was provided with three priority 2 recommendations and one priority 3 
recommendation being raised. 
 

6.2. Leasing in Schools 
6.2.1. Thematic testing of leasing arrangements was undertaken during school audit visits in 

2012/13. From the 12 schools visited at the time the results were compiled, 11 were 
identified as having lease agreements in place for items and services including: 
• Photocopiers; 
• Telephone systems and mobile phones; 
• Water coolers; 

Page 62



 SUMMARY REPORT 
 

Management Letter – 2012/13 Schools Year End Summary Report 6 
 

• Interactive Whiteboards; and 
• Postal services. 

6.2.2. From the 12 schools visited, recommendations were raised in ten instances. In each of the 
ten cases the School had not sought advice or approval from the Council prior to entering 
into the lease agreement as required by the School Finance Procedures Manual. The 
following issues were also identified: 
• One leasing arrangement examined was to provide postal services at no cost to the 

school. The school is charged for postage by Xerox Finance and then reimbursed in full 
by Cleanmail Solutions. We were unable to determine why the leasing company would 
provide such an arrangement; 

• One lease agreement expired on the 31 March 2012; however, the School had 
continued to pay the same monthly payments at the time of the audit (May 2012) and no 
action has been taken to renew the lease or seek an alternative arrangement; and 

• Leasing agreement documentation could not be provided at the time of the audit in one 
case.  
 

6.3. Comparison of audit test programmes across the tri borough 
6.3.1. As part of the 2012/13 internal audit plan, we also undertook a comparison of the schools 

audit test programmes used by LBHF, RBKC and WCC Councils. The outcome of this work 
was used to assist in developing a consistent test programme across the tri borough. Our 
aim is to use this test new programme in both LBHF and RBKC in 2013/14. 
 

7. Proposed Actions for Management 
 

7.1. As a result of the work undertaken in 2011/12, we make the following recommendations in addition 
to those recommendations already raised in individual audit reports: 
• The Children’s Services department should take proactive action in collaboration with 

schools to address common areas of control weakness and improve the control environment 
within schools. Particular areas of focus should include: 
o Demonstrating that value for money has been obtained for large value purchases; 
o Controls around income collection and banking to minimise the risk of fraud and error; 

and 
o Procedures for entering into leasing arrangements. 

• As the Schools Management Service was considered a source of assurance for the Council 
with regards to financial management in schools, management should consider whether the 
same level of independence and assurance can be provided under the new ELM 
arrangement or whether alternative sources of scrutiny and assurance are required; 

• Schools should be reminded that all recommendations agreed and included in their final 
internal audit report should be implemented. Consideration should be given to gaining 
additional assurance that priority 1 recommendations have been implemented and also 
determining why unimplemented recommendations were reported as implemented; and 

• Consideration should be given to providing fraud awareness training to schools. 
7.2. An action plan detailing the issues identified and recommendations raised can be found in 

Appendix E. 

Page 63



 SUMMARY REPORT 
 

Management Letter – 2012/13 Schools Year End Summary Report 7 
 

Appendix A - School Audits Undertaken in 2012/13 
 
The table below summarises the assurance opinions and Ofsted inspection results for each of the school audits audited this financial year. 
 

  Audit Opinion   
Type of 
School School Nil Limited Satisfactory Substantial 

Draft Issue 
Date 

Final Issued 
Date 

Date of last 
Ofsted 

Result of 
Ofsted 

FINALISED 
Primary Avonmore   �  07/06/2012 16/10/2012 18/10/2011 Good 
Primary Brackenbury   �  31/05/2012 16/10/2012 24/01/2006 Good 

Secondary Cambridge  �   26/07/2012 11/12/2012 08/09/2010 Outstanding 
Primary Greenside  �   18/06/2012 11/12/2012 21/12/2012 Requires 

Improvement 
Secondary Lady Margaret   �  13/07/2012 27/09/2012 12/10/2011 Outstanding 
Primary New Kings   �  31/05/2012 16/10/2012 14/01/2013 Good 
Primary Pope John   �  30/05/2012 16/10/2012 20/05/2004 Outstanding 
Primary St Mary’s   �  13/07/2012 16/10/2012 02/07/2010 Good 
Primary St Stephens   

� 
 

 29/06/2012 16/10/2012 24/05/2011 Outstanding 
Primary Wormholt Park    �  31/05/2012 16/10/2012 15/12/2008 Good 

DRAFT 
Primary All Saints   �  06/03/2013 - 14/07/2011 Good 

Pupil Referral 
Unit Bridge Academy   �  23/10/2012 - 01/07/2010 Outstanding 

Primary Fulham Primary School  �   28/09/2012 - 28/09/2012 Good 
Secondary Hurlingham and Chelsea   �  13/09/2012 - 12/09/2011 Outstanding 
Primary Kenmont  �   06/03/2013 - 05/10/2012 Good 
Special Woodlane   �  01/03/2013 - 10/06/2011 Outstanding 

 Total 0 4 12 0     
 
 

P
age 64



 SUMMARY REPORT 
 

Management Letter – 2012/13 Schools Year End Summary Report 8 
 

Appendix B – Priority 1 Recommendation Follow ups Undertaken in 2012/13 
 
Although no full follow up visits were undertaken in 2011/12, a number of priority 1 recommendations raised in substantial assurance reports were 
followed up to confirm implementation. The results were as follows: 
 

Financial Year of 
Audit School Recommendation Implemented Partly 

Implemented 
Not 

Implemented 
Not 

Applicable 
2011/12 Randolph Beresford Early Years 

Centre School Meals Reconciliation   �  

2009/10 Cambridge School 
Registration with Data 
Protection Registrar and 
Confidentiality Policy 

�    
       
   1 0 1 0 

 

P
age 65



 SUMMARY REPORT 
 

Management Letter – 2012/13 Schools Year End Summary Report 9 
 

Appendix C – Assurance Opinions For All Schools 
 
The table below shows the assurance opinions provided to each school over the last four years.* 
 

School Year 
 2009/10** 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 

Nursery Schools 
Bayonne Nursery School   Satisfactory  
James Lee Nursery School   Satisfactory  

Randolph Beresford Nursery School   Satisfactory  
Addison Primary School Satisfactory  Satisfactory  

All Saints C of E Primary School  Satisfactory  Satisfactory 
Avonmore Primary School Satisfactory   Satisfactory 
Bentworth Primary School   Satisfactory  

Brackenbury Primary School Limited   Satisfactory 
Canberra Primary School   Satisfactory  

Flora Gardens Primary School   Satisfactory  
Fulham Primary Limited   Limited 

Greenside Primary School Satisfactory   Limited 
Holy Cross RC Primary School Satisfactory  Satisfactory  
John Betts VA Primary School  Satisfactory   

Kenmont Primary School  Satisfactory  Limited 
Langford Primary School   Satisfactory  

Larmenier Sacred Heart RC Primary School  Satisfactory   
Lena Gardens Primary School  Satisfactory   
Melcombe Primary School   Satisfactory  

Miles Coverdale Primary School  Satisfactory   
New Kings Primary School Satisfactory   Satisfactory 

Normand Croft Community School   Satisfactory  
Old Oak Primary School  Satisfactory   

Pope John RC Primary School Satisfactory   Satisfactory 
Queens Manor Primary School   Satisfactory  
Sir John Lillie Primary School  Satisfactory   

St  Augustine’s RC Primary School   Satisfactory  
St John’s C of E Walham Green Primary School   Satisfactory  

St Mary’s RC Primary School  Nil  Satisfactory 

Page 66



 SUMMARY REPORT 
 

Management Letter – 2012/13 Schools Year End Summary Report 10 
 

 

 

* Assurance opinion definitions changed in 2013/14 with Satisfactory Assurance now being broadly 
comparable to the Substantial Assurance opinion of previous years. For the sake of consistency, 
previous assurance opinions have been updated to reflect the new opinions. 
** The test programme for 2010/11 to 2012/13 audit visits is reduced from previous years and therefore 
the assurance opinion provided in 2009/10 may not be comparable. 
. 

St Paul's C of  E  Primary School  Satisfactory   
St Peter’s C of E  Primary School   Satisfactory  
St Stephens’ C of E Primary School Satisfactory   Satisfactory 

St Thomas of Canterbury RC Primary School  Satisfactory   
Sulivan Primary School   Satisfactory  

The Good Shepherd RC Primary School   Satisfactory  
Vanessa Nursery School   Satisfactory  

Wendell Park Primary School  Satisfactory   
Wormholt Park Primary School Limited   Satisfactory 

Secondary Schools 
Fulham Cross Girls’ School**   Satisfactory  
Henry Compton School**   Satisfactory  

Hurlingham & Chelsea School Satisfactory   Satisfactory 
Lady Margaret School Satisfactory   Satisfactory 
Phoenix High School  Satisfactory   

Sacred Heart High School  Satisfactory   
William Morris Sixth Form  Substantial   

Special Schools 
Cambridge School Satisfactory   Limited 
Jack Tizard School   Satisfactory  
Queensmill School  Satisfactory   

Woodlane High School  Satisfactory  Satisfactory 
Pupil Referral Unit 

The Bridge Academy Satisfactory   Satisfactory 

Page 67



 SUMMARY REPORT 
 

Management Letter – 2012/13 Schools Year End Summary Report 11 
 

Appendix D - Definition of Audit Opinions 
 
We have four categories by which we classify internal audit assurance over the processes we examine, and these are defined as follows: 

 Substantial There is a sound system of control designed to achieve the objectives. Compliance with the control process is 
considered to be substantial and few material errors or weaknesses were found. 

 Satisfactory 
While there is a basically sound system, there are weaknesses and/or omissions which put some of the system 
objectives at risk, and/or there is evidence that the level of non-compliance with some of the controls may put 
some of the system objectives at risk. 

 Limited Weaknesses and / or omissions in the system of controls are such as to put the system objectives at risk, and/or 
the level of non-compliance puts the system objectives at risk. 

 None Control is generally weak, leaving the system open to significant error or abuse, and/or significant non-compliance 
with basic controls leaves the system open to error or abuse. 

 
The assurance gradings provided above are not comparable with the International Standard on Assurance Engagements (ISAE 3000) issued by the 
International Audit and Assurance Standards Board and as such the grading of ‘Full Assurance’ does not imply that there are no risks to the stated objectives. 
 
 
  

Su 

Sa 

N 

L 

P
age 68



 SUMMARY REPORT 
 

Management Letter – 2012/13 Schools Year End Summary Report 12 
 

Appendix E – Recommendations  
 
1. Commonly Occurring Issues 
Priority Issue Recommendation 

2 Overall the results of internal audits in 2012/13 had declined since 
the previous year. The most commonly occurring issues in audit 
reports were: 

•  Evidence of value for money not being retained for 
large value purchases; 

• The adequacy of school meals income records and the 
audit trail between income collected and cash banked; 
and 

• No evidence of Governing Body approval of key 
documents such as the School Development Plan. 

Thematic testing of leasing arrangements was undertaken during 
school audit visits. From the 12 schools visited at the time the results 
were compiled recommendations were raised in ten instances; in 
each of the ten cases the School had not sought advice or approval 
from the Council. 
Furthermore, one school received a Limited Assurance opinion for 
the second time in succession. 

The Children’s Services department should take proactive action in 
collaboration with schools to address common areas of control 
weakness and improve the control environment within schools. 
Particular areas of focus should include: 
• Demonstrating that value for money has been obtained for 

large value purchases; 
• Controls around income collection and banking to minimise the 

risk of fraud and error; 
• Approval of key documents; and 
• Procedures for entering into leasing arrangements. 
This may take the form of training or guidance notes. 
Further support should also be provided to those schools that 
receive a Limited Assurance Opinion. 

 Management Response Responsible Officer Deadline 
   
 
  

P
age 69



 SUMMARY REPORT 
 

Management Letter – 2012/13 Schools Year End Summary Report 13 
 

2. Assurance Gained From The Employee Led Mutual 
Priority Issue Recommendation 

1 Council staff providing School Management Support services for 
schools have set themselves up as an employee-led mutual (ELM). 
The Schools Management Service was considered a source of 
assurance for the Council with regards to financial management in 
schools. 

Management should consider whether the same level of 
independence and assurance can be provided under the new ELM 
arrangement or whether alternative sources of scrutiny and 
assurance are required. 

 Management Response Responsible Officer Deadline 
   
 
 
3. Implementation of Internal Audit Recommendations 
Priority Issue Recommendation 

2 Although no full follow up visits were required in 2012/13, two priority 
1 recommendations raised in substantial assurance reports were 
followed up to confirm implementation. One recommendation had 
been fully implemented and one had not been implemented. The 
results of our follow up work can be seen in Appendix B. 

Schools should be reminded that all recommendations agreed and 
included in their final internal audit report should be implemented. 
Consideration should be given to gaining additional assurance that 
priority 1 recommendations have been implemented and also 
determining why unimplemented recommendations were reported as 
implemented. 

 Management Response Responsible Officer Deadline 
   
 
  

P
age 70



 SUMMARY REPORT 
 

Management Letter – 2012/13 Schools Year End Summary Report 14 
 

4. Fraud Awareness Training 
Priority Issue Recommendation 

2 Due to the large degree of autonomy given to schools and also the 
relatively small size of administrative teams within schools, there is 
an increased risk of fraud. 
No recent fraud awareness training has been offered to schools. 

Consideration should be given to providing fraud awareness training 
to schools to assist them in identifying the indicators of fraud and 
advising them of what action to take if a fraud is suspected. 

 Management Response Responsible Officer Deadline 
   
 

P
age 71



 SUMMARY REPORT 
 

Management Letter – 2012/13 Schools Year End Summary Report 15 
 

 
Statement of 
Responsibility 

We take responsibility for this report which is prepared on the basis of the 
limitations set out below. 
The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention 
during the course of our internal audit work and are not necessarily a 
comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all improvements 
that might be made.  Recommendations for improvements should be assessed 
by you for their full impact before they are implemented.  The performance of 
internal audit work is not and should not be taken as a substitute for 
management’s responsibilities for the application of sound management 
practices.  We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system of internal 
controls and the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities rests 
with management and work performed by internal audit should not be relied 
upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses in internal controls, nor relied 
upon to identify all circumstances of fraud or irregularity.  Auditors, in 
conducting their work, are required to have regards to the possibility of fraud or 
irregularities.  Even sound systems of internal control can only provide 
reasonable and not absolute assurance and may not be proof against collusive 
fraud.  Internal audit procedures are designed to focus on areas as identified 
by management as being of greatest risk and significance and as such we rely 
on management to provide us full access to their accounting records and 
transactions for the purposes of our audit work and to ensure the authenticity of 
these documents.  Effective and timely implementation of our 
recommendations by management is important for the maintenance of a 
reliable internal control system.  The assurance level awarded in our internal 
audit report is not comparable with the International Standard on Assurance 
Engagements (ISAE 3000) issued by the International Audit and Assurance 
Standards Board. 
 

Deloitte & Touche Public Sector Internal Audit Limited 
London 
June 2013 
 

In this document references to Deloitte are references to Deloitte & Touche 
Public Sector Internal Audit Limited. 
Registered office: Hill House, 1 Little New Street, London EC4A 3TR, United 
Kingdom.  Registered in England and Wales No 4585162. 
Deloitte & Touche Public Sector Internal Audit Limited is a subsidiary of 
Deloitte LLP, the United Kingdom member firm of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu 
Limited (“DTTL”), a UK private company limited by guarantee, whose member 
firms are legally separate and independent entities.  Please see 
www.deloitte.co.uk/about for a detailed description of the legal structure of 
DTTL and its member firms. 
Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited 

 

Page 72



1 | P a g e   D r a f t  V 4  

 

LINK & FCS Joint Paper on behalf of the Tri-boroughs 
 

PLAN FOR PROPERTY MANAGEMENT FOR TRI-BOROUGH SCHOOLS 

1.  FORUM 
 
This paper will be presented to the following October 2013 forums for discussion and  
endorsement of the proposed strategy: 
 
• Strategic Partnership Board  - 27th Sept 2013 
• Schools Forums 

o RBKC – 3rd October 2013 
o WCC – 7th October 2013 
o H&F – 14th October 2013 

• Business Managers Forums – 8th October 2013 
2. EXECUTIVE  SUMMARY 

This paper sets out proposals for property management for schools within the Tri-Boroughs 
and all schools within the London Boroughs to call off services under the Project and 
Framework Agreements with effect from April 2014.  
The Tri-boroughs have undertaken considerable work to understand their current and 
continuing property related responsibilities for Schools in a dynamic and changing schools 
and local authority environment.    
The award of the Tri-borough Total Facilities Management contract to Amey Community 
Limited (Amey), following an extensive procurement and due diligence process, has 
provided a driver to rationalise these arrangements and create significant financial and non 
financial benefits for schools. 
The financial benefits of the proposals, set out in Section 5, include between 10% and 20% 
price reduction in Soft Services (primarily cleaning) and Hard Services (primarily the 
maintenance and repair of plant and machinery and building fabric), depending on the scale 
of services taken , contract duration and school size.   
Further benefits to schools, set out in Section 4, can be generated from the release of 
leadership and governors time from property related activities, clarity on compliance 
responsibilities and management and implementation of industry best practice for asset 
management.  Amey will also bring added value to the schools by supporting the schools 
social agenda and in developing ideas for additional revenue.  
A ‘Stakeholder Group’ of Head teachers and empowered business managers gathered from 
across the Tri-boroughs will be established and exist for the duration of the contract. The 
purpose of this group will be to review proposed solutions for the management of the 
property portfolio in relation to schools. Solutions being considered will be both in relation to 

Agenda Item 12

Page 73



2 | P a g e   D r a f t  V 4  

 

the delivery of services by Amey and also the management and monitoring of these services 
via LINK1 in its role as intelligent client for Tri-Borough. 
   

3. BACKGROUND & PURPOSE 
This paper has been written to outline proposals for property management for schools with 
effect from April 2014.   
The period to April 2014 has been subject to earlier agreement whereby the Tri-boroughs 
have retained Amey to fulfil existing facilities contract arrangements between October 2013 
and April 2014 at existing service and pricing levels. 
School property management responsibilities 
The Tri-boroughs have undertaken considerable work to understand their current and 
continuing responsibilities for Schools in a dynamic and changing schools and local authority 
environment.  Some are managed well and others les so with responsibilities having been 
interpreted differently over recent years. As a result, the letting of the Tri-borough TFM 
contract has provided an opportunity to align these arrangements. 
To facilitate this a number of recommendations were made with input from senior FCS 
officers including Dave McNamara and Andrew Tagg to and accepted by the Tri-borough 
Asset and Property Management Board on 16th April 2013  
The following recommendations were: 
• Implementation of the industry recognised best practice model for asset management 

(see Appendix B). 
•  Identification and clarity of school and Council responsibilities respectively. 

Health & Safety Compliance 
Schools are predominantly involved in the ‘delivery’ stage of facilities management which 
includes maintenance, cleaning, security, certain aspects of compliance and minor revenue 
projects.   
Compliance has been highlighted as an area of particular importance.  Ultimate 
accountability lies with the Councils for community schools.  In practice the responsibility for 
delivering compliance is shared between the Council and School Governors (see Appendix 
C for breakdown of responsibilities).  The Councils are responsible for performing Health and 
Safety audits and monitoring delivery of compliance to meet the legislation, however the 
research has provided anecdotal evidence that the process is not functioning correctly. This 
implies that the Councils and Schools have been reactive rather than proactive and thereby 
forgone opportunities to deliver additional savings through the effective planning and 
management of compliance obligations. 
 

                                                           
1 LINK is the client team,  hosted by RBKC, whose responsibility is to manage the TFM provision on behalf of 
the Tri-Boroughs. 

Page 74



3 | P a g e   D r a f t  V 4  

 

4.  TOTAL FACILITIES MANAGEMENT (TFM) 
FM covers a full range of support services to the Borough corporate estate, including, but not 
limited to, maintenance and cleaning, manned security and reception. These are sometimes 
referred to as Hard and Soft services. This proposal discusses a TFM model which 
encompasses an aggregated, coordinated and extended range of these services. 
The target operating model for this project is to use common processes and share access to 
multi-user, fully managed business services, used in the same way, to deliver a facilities 
management across the Tri-boroughs.  
This is a fully outsourced solution including the delivery and management of services to 
agreed specifications and service levels monitored by Tri-Borough through LINK. The Tri-
boroughs have procured an end-to-end managed service rather than a simple contracted 
labour force for delivery and a Framework that allows Partnering Authorities to take 
advantage of the negotiated terms and prices for FM services by means of a separate 
agreement with Amey.  
TFM Benefits 
Contracting with an outsourced shared services provider offers many financial and non-
financial corporate benefits (detailed in Appendix D) and breaks the silo approach to 
property management across the Tri-boroughs. Through the use of innovative and pro-active 
management information (MI) and a simplified supply chain the Tri-boroughs property 
management of schools is leaner, more robust and thereby fit-for-purpose. 
In addition to these there are specific benefits in relation to Schools and Nurseries as 
outlined below: 
 
• Releases senior leadership time from non-teaching activities (i.e. procurement and 

building management)  
• Enables governing body to focus more on the needs of the student population rather 

than the fabric of the building 
• Additional benefit of Amey’s focus on community and social engagement  
• Additional revenues through third party usage of Schools facilities 
• Using Amey’s expertise coupled with clear lines of responsibility with special regard 

to health and safety compliance using: 
o Centralised electronic storage of data that is easily accessible to all in 

addition to on-site arrangements (e.g. log-books and folders) 
o A one-stop helpdesk service  
o Innovative web-enabled technology 
o Amey’s extensive experience of managing health and safety across various 

schools environments  
o Clarity on building compliance and support in its management 

Page 75



4 | P a g e   D r a f t  V 4  

 

The procurement process 
The TFM contract was awarded following a robust and lengthy procurement process via 
Competitive Dialogue (CD) delivering value for money through extensive competition across 
the facilities market place. In addition to various provisions of the contract the Councils will 
ensure value for money through continued market testing throughout the length of the 
contract. See Appendix E for details of the process undertaken. 

5.  TFM PROPOSITION FOR SCHOOLS 
 Contracting arrangements for schools are separated into two categories: 
 

a) schools which fall under the Project Agreement (PA) which applies to the  
majority of Tri-Borough schools  

b) schools under the Framework Agreement (FA) which applies to a number of Tri-
Borough schools and all schools in the remaining London Boroughs. 

 
This division is created through the nature of the contracting relationship. Maintained schools 
(i.e. those who have a financial relationship with the Local Authority) should be contracted 
through the PA whilst non-maintained schools in their various forms contract directly with 
Amey via the FA. See Appendix F for details. 
 
Financial Arrangements 
 
Amey are an experienced provider of facilities management services in the school 
environment in England, Scotland and Northern Ireland. Amey has developed a financial 
model which is competitive with existing market rates. Where possible, a specific rate has 
been provided (e.g. cleaning in £/m², see Table 1.0) which will allow schools to directly 
compare against existing rates to determine possible savings. In some instances, such as 
mechanical services where a site inspection would be required, Amey have given a range of 
potential savings (see table 2.0). 
 

Table 1.0 – Cleaning rates for schools 

Table 2.0 – Hard Services estimated percentage reduction compared with existing rates 
 
 
An Amey site visit will be required to complete and verify schools assets to make a firm 
commercial offer to the school. Further discounts will be applied to the financial model 

Tri-Borough – School Cleaning 

m² 0 to 500 500 to 1000 1000 to 3000 3000+ 

School Buildings (£/m²) £ 24.44 £ 15.11 £ 14.05 £ 13.06 

Estimated percentage reduction against existing rates 10-12% 10-14% 12-15% 15-20% 

Tri-Borough – Hard Services 

m² 0 to 500 500 to 1000 1000 to 3000 3000+ 

Estimated percentage reduction against existing rates 10-12% 11-13% 13-16% 15-20% 

Page 76



5 | P a g e   D r a f t  V 4  

 

shown above based on ‘bundled’ services and longer contract durations, as discussed in 
Appendix H.  
 
 

6.  CLIENTING ARRANGEMENTS 
 
Implementation of this strategy will impact those functions that currently provide ‘client side’ 
facilities management for Schools. The TFM is a move away from traditional forms of 
contract management to one closer to contractor self management and reporting thereby 
reducing the length of the supply chain and delivering savings. The objective of the client in 
this form of operation is to become more strategic concentrating on future trends and 
requirements rather than day-to-day matters that will be managed by the contractor via their 
24 hour helpdesk facility (i.e. a single point of contact for the customer). 
 
From current FCS responsibilities  
 
• first point of contact 
• transactional  invoice processing 
• Dispute escalation and resolution 
• Customer liaison through escalation 
• Monitor contractor performance 
• Iterative re-procurement exercises 

 
To future LINK responsibilities   
 
• Collating data to recommend  future strategies 
• Monitoring contractor performance & sampling 
• Benchmarking market rates to ensure continual value for money 
• Invoicing: 

- Option 1: coordinating payment to Amey and coordinating payment from the 
Schools 

- Option 2: ‘up front’ payment with release of savings for non performance  
• Dispute escalation and resolution 
• Identify areas for future savings and added value from the TFM 
• Compliance monitoring (if selected by the School) 
• Driving the rolling and capital programmes 

 
Recent discussions with schools representatives and partner boroughs, who will both be 
contracting via the FA, have indicated a desire to procure professional clienting services as 
part of the TFM offer.  However, there are various forms of client model that could be 
adopted therefore decisions on the structure and role of the model will be taken once the 
need is proven and will be the subject of a later paper.  
 

7.  REPORTING REQUIREMENTS  
 
As identified at the outset of this paper the cyclical process of property and asset 
management requires all property and asset data to be maintained and updated in order that 
future requirements can be understood and fulfilled.  This process is best facilitated for 
Schools by their buying into the TFM package of services because all data will be gathered 
through integrated systems.  
However, gaps in data may appear when any School should choose not to purchase a TFM 
solution from Amey (i.e. a single service provision) or choose to procure alternative facilities 

Page 77



6 | P a g e   D r a f t  V 4  

 

providers.  In these scenarios there still remains a requirement on the School and its 
Governors to provide all health and safety data as set out by auditing regimes and/or leases. 

8.  GOVERNANCE PROCESS 
 
Approvals to date   
In order to create and agree this paper there has been extensive consultation including: 
 

- Agreement with Tri-borough Asset Management and Property Board on strategy (see 
background)  

- Agreement with Tri-borough FCS Director (April 2013) 
- TFM Contracts Working Group including FCS contracts Managers and ICF team 

 
Future Approvals include 

- Strategic Partnership Board 
- Schools Forums  
- Business Managers Forum  

 
9.  STAKEHOLDER GROUP 

 
The purpose of this group is to provide and review proposed solutions for the management 
of the property portfolio in relation to schools from LINK and Tri-boroughs.  The group will 
exist for the duration of the contract.  It will be composed of three representatives from each 
of the Tri-boroughs plus an additional representative for ‘Special Schools’.  
Terms of Reference 

1) To review the proposed solution to ensure that the views/ requirements of schools 
are accurately reflected. 

2) To develop an effective communication strategy. 
3) To develop further reports to go to the individual schools forums. 
4) To develop models for delivery and monitoring of schools property management 

responsibilities  
Attendees 
The required representatives from each borough to be determined by each individual 
schools forum. 

10. COMMUNICATIONS & ENGAGEMENT WITH SCHOOLS   
 
Supplementing the main communications programme for the mobilisation phase of the TFM 
contract a communication plan specifically for Schools has been compiled, agreed and will 
be executed jointly between both the Amey and Tri-borough communications leads (see 
Appendix G for details of the Schools Communication Plan). The objective being to ensure 
that schools are suitably briefed about TFM and those existing facilities services will be 
delivered by Amey going forward. 

Page 78



7 | P a g e   D r a f t  V 4  

 

 
Following contract signature in June 2013 there has been extensive communication with 
Schools regarding TFM informing them about the change in service provider and working 
alongside Amey to oversee their direct communications to schools as part of the service 
mobilisation phase, ready for them to take over services from 1st October 2013. These initial 
meetings are to reassure Schools representatives that Amey are on target to deliver current 
services and develop relations in order to expand the service offering to these schools post 
April 2014.  
There are two key aspects to this approach: 

1. The channels/networks to be utilised: 
• Engaging with schools on an individual basis within the Tri-Boroughs (of which an 

extensive customer relationship management (CRM) database has been 
compiled and is being maintained up-to-date by Amey) 

• Schools Forums  
• Business Managers Forums  
• Approaching Academy and School clusters 

2. The tools used to support the service offering: 
• Social Engagement Roadmap – the initial intention is to develop this specifically 

to a geographical region 
• Additional Revenue Roadmap 
- Generic offering to all schools offering support to creating additional revenue 

by utilising facilities outside of term dates and normal hours of operation 
- Maximising the school budget through social engagement (activities to drive 

increased pupil attendance which in turn will maximise school budgets) 
 

11.  RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Each of the Forums to which this paper is being presented as listed in section 1. above are 
asked to: 
 

• Note the contents of the paper and the implications for the relationship between 
Schools and the Tri-Boroughs Councils in implementing the agreed target 
operating model. 

• To endorse Amey and actively promote the TFM as a service offering both across 
Tri-Borough Schools and Nurseries and across the London region as laid out in 
the OJEU notice (See Appendix F). 

• Endorse the establishment of a ‘Stakeholder Group’ of Head teachers (or other 
empowered nominated representatives) gathered from across the Tri-boroughs 
who will review proposed solutions for the management of the property portfolio 
in relation to schools from LINK and Tri-boroughs.  The group will exist for the 
duration of the contract. 

Page 79



8 | P a g e   D r a f t  V 4  

 

• The existing ‘client side’ functions for facilities management for Schools will be 
impacted by the above and recent discussions with schools representatives and 
partner boroughs have indicated a determination  to procure professional 
clienting services as part of the TFM offer.  Further direction will be sought in 
relation to the opportunities posed for LINK and will be subject of a later paper.  

 
Glenn Woodhead 
Framework Manager (Tri-borough Facilities Management) 
Kensington Town Hall 
Hornton Street 
London 
W8 7NX 
 
tel: 020 7938 8202 mob: 07739 315 390 
glenn.woodhead@rbkc.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 80



9 | P a g e   D r a f t  V 4  

 

Appendix A 
Information about Amey 
Founded in 1921 and part of the Ferrovial Group since 2003 Amey is one of the UK’s leading 
public service providers employing 21,000 people with a turnover of £2.3billion and are 
facilities management experts that manage buildings on behalf of The Home Office, Ministry 
of Justice, the NHS, Ministry of Defence as well as schools and airports around the country. 
 
Amey is the only company in their sector to hold both the Investors in People Gold Award 
and Campion Status and also hold the Gold Standards across the entire business by the 
Royal Society for Prevention of Accidents. 
 
For more information visit www.amey.co.uk.  For more information on Total Facilities 
Management services, please visit the TFM pages on TriBnet 
(http://tribnet/Support/triboroughfacilitiesmanagement/abouttriboroughfacilitiesmanagement/
Pages/default.aspx). 
 
Amey’s Facilities Management Services 
 
The range of services Amey is contracted to provide on behalf of the councils includes: 
• Cleaning 
• Building management 
• Building security 
• Building repairs and 
• maintenance 
• 24/7 FM helpdesk 
• Catering 
• Mail services 
• Reception services 
• Print and reprographics 
• Landscaping 
• Pest control 
• Health and safety including 
• statutory compliance 

Need to report a facilities problem? 
Call us 24/7 on 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 81



10 | P a g e   D r a f t  V 4  

 

Appendix B 
Asset Management Model 
The Tri-boroughs have a legal requirement to provision sufficient and suitable places (i.e. 
pupil place planning) for school children within their remit. This requirement is the framework 
for the property strategy for schools.  In relation to the model set out in Appendix A the 
following is the cyclical process of management:  
• Pupil place planning is the study to understand demand, supply and identification of 

‘gaps’ in pupil placement.   
• The identified gaps provide an Input into the Councils asset management plan. 
• The asset management plan drives the capital programme, rolling programme and 

the maintenance programme.  This also includes other items such as the compliance 
programme and any requirements for facilities management within the schools. 

• Programmes are delivered in line with the plans. 
• There are scheduled review points (such as H&S audits, conditions surveys). 
• Review of external enforced change such as suitability and sufficiency, funding and 

government legislation. 
• The process continues as per above. 

 
 

London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham | The Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea | Westminster City Council

10

Strategy

PlanChange

Review Deliver

Pupil Place 
Planning

Asset Mgt 
Plan

Capital 
Programme

Rolling 
Programme

Capital projects
Minor capital 

projects
Compliance

Maintenance
Soft FM

Insurance

Compliance audits
KPIs / 

benchmarking
Operational costs
Condition surveys

Legislation
Suitability
Sufficiency

Demographics
Funding

 
 
 
 

Page 82



11 | P a g e   D r a f t  V 4  

 

Appendix C 
Breakdown of Health & Safety Compliance Responsibilities 
The following services are ‘in scope’ for Community, Community Special, and Foundation 
and, as such, are ‘out of scope’ for VA, Academy, Free and Special schools 
RBKC & WCC LBHF 
• Condition surveys  • Asbestos  surveys and risk 

assessment  
• Asbestos  surveys and risk assessment  • Asbestos register maintenance 
• Asbestos register maintenance • Condition surveys 
• Display Energy Certificates  • Kitchen plant maintenance 
• Legionella risk assessment (water risk 

assessment) 
 

• Fixed wire testing   
• Lift maintenance  

The remaining compliance responsibilities are: 
• Emergency lighting 
• Fire Risk assessments and management plan 
• Fire doors 
• Fire detection equipment 
• First aid equipment 
• Gas safety 
• Portable appliance testing 
• Safety glazing 
• Air conditioning systems 
• COSHH risk assessments and management plan 
• Lightening conductors 

 
 
 
 

Page 83



12 | P a g e   D r a f t  V 4  

 

Appendix D 
Benefits of the TFM Solution 
 
The financial case comprises:  
 

• Procurement cost reductions – arising from joint Tri-Borough procurement 
compared to the three boroughs undertaking separate procurements.  
 

• Operational cost savings – a £9 million (30% per cent) annual saving in 
operational costs across Tri-borough. The TFM project had an initial savings 
target of £2 million pounds per annum across the three councils. 

 
• Income generation – opportunities for additional income and or cost savings as a 

result of associated economies of scale arising from the Framework being 
offered. This would be dependent on the number of Partnering Authorities who 
decide to buy into the framework. 

 
The non-financial benefits of TFM include: 
 

• Statutory compliance – a consistent and robust auditable approach to the 
management of statutory compliance across the Tri-Borough estate. 
 

• Transparency and visibility – effective and real time delivery of management 
information enabling improved control of the estate leading assisting in the 
delivery of the asset management model outlined above. 

 
• Scalability – the improved ability to flex both the estate and head count matching 

operating costs to the demands of the estate. 
 

• Process and system standardisation across Tri-Borough – consistent service 
quality standards, systems, processes and data sets to yield significantly more 
capital and revenue savings, facilitating rationalisation of the estate through 
better space utilisation and sharing of assets. 

 
• Specialism – utilisation of an industry leading facilities management provider to 

provide services, thus freeing up management time in order to deliver greater 
benefit to service users. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 84



13 | P a g e   D r a f t  V 4  

 

Appendix E 
Procurement Process Details  
Statutory notices were sent for publication in the OJEU.  On 26th July a Prior Information 
Notice (Reference: 2011/S 141-234373) appeared and on 5th November 2011 the Contract 
Notice (Reference: 2011/S 213-347911) was published.  Expressions of interest were 
received from 143 organisations of which 11 submitted responses to the Pre-Qualification 
Questionnaire (PQQ). 
The top five shortlisted Bidders were invited to participate in Competitive Dialogue which 
commenced in mid May 2012. The Bidders’ interim detailed solutions were received on 6th  
July 2012. 
Following evaluation, three of the Bidders were shortlisted for the next stage of dialogue 
which began in August 2012. The dialogue officially closed on 14th December 2012 when all 
outstanding issues and queries had been resolved and the Councils issued an “Invitation to 
Submit Final Bids” (ITSFB).  
The TFM Contract has now been awarded to Amey Community Ltd (details about Amey are 
contained in Appendix C) and is currently mobilising with ‘go-live’ scheduled for 1St October 
2013. The contract has been let jointly to the Tri-borough Authorities for a period of ten years 
with an option to extend for a period or periods of up to a further three years.  

 
All three Authorities have also jointly let the Framework Agreement which will be available 
for the Participating Bodies and educational establishments for a period of four years. It is 
anticipated that call-offs under the Framework Agreement may be for periods that are longer 
than four years, but will have co-terminus expiry dates with the main Tri-Borough contract.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 85



14 | P a g e  

 

Appendix F  
Maintained schools and non-maintained schools 

Bo
ro

ug
h  

Maintained 
Co

mm
un

ity
  

Co
mm

un
ity

  
Sp

ec
ial

  

Fo
un

da
tio

n  

1°  2°  1°  2°  1° 

LBHF  24  -  1  4  1  

RBKC  12  -  -  3  -  

WCC  12  -  -  2  -  

Totals  48  -  1  9  1  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

maintained schools  

Non-maintained  

Fo
un

da
tio

n  

VA
  

Ac
ad

em
y  

Fre
e  

Sp
ec

ial
  

1°  2°  1°  2°  1°  2°  1°  2°  1°  2° 

 1  13  4  2  2  1  -  -  1 

 -  15  2  -  2  
    

 -  26  4  1  6  1  -  -  - 

 1  54  10  3  10  2  
 

-  1 

 D r a f t  V 4  

Pr
im

ary
 To

tal
  

Se
co

nd
ary

 To
tal

  

Gr
an

d T
ota

ls 
 

2°  

1  42  12  54  

 
27  7  34  

  40  12  52  

1  109  31  140  

 

Page 86



15 | P a g e   D r a f t  V 4  

 

Appendix G 
Schools Communications Plan 
Objective Proposed activity Date and owner 
Inform schools about what TFM is, 
how it affects them and to give 
them our contact details for any 
questions 

Letter sent to all schools following 
TFM contract sign off. 10 

10 June 2013 

Naresh Sohal and Glenn 
Woodhead 

Ensure key school contacts (such as 
legal, contract managers and 
procurement) know what is 
happening regarding TFM and can 
answer their questions 

Brief key schools contacts briefed 
about TFM long term approach 

 

12 June 2013 
Naresh Sohal 

Ensure schools are aware of what 
TFM is, how it affects them and 
provide them with our contact 
details for any questions 

Design flyer and distribute it at Tri-
borough schools conference 

 

26 June 2013 
Naresh Sohal and Glenn 
Woodhead 

Agree which school services and 
contracts are to be taken over by 
Amey 

Meet with Amey and Children’s 
Services to agree what we do 

1 July 2013 

Naresh Sohal and Glenn 
Woodhead 

Inform schools of our intention for 
Amey to deliver services.  

Letter sent to all affected schools 
following agreement with Amey. 
Schedule of the services and 
proposed takeover date included. 
Schools also offered opportunity to 
contact us if they have any queries. 

15 July 2013 

Naresh Sohal and Glenn 
Woodhead 

 

TFM Strategy Board to sign off 
schools services to be taken over 
by Amey, ready to commence 
service mobilisation and TUPE 

Present proposals to TFM Strategy 
Board  

 

8 August 2013 
Glenn Woodhead 

Agree communications plan with 
Amey 

Present draft communications 
activity to Amey 

14 August 2013 
Eleonora Pilley, Glenn 
Woodhead, Emma Bailey and 
William Lunn  

Re-confirm our proposed changes 
and give schools the opportunity to 
let us know if they are not in 
agreement by 19 August 

Second letter sent to all affected 
schools  

 

12 August 2013 
Naresh Sohal and Glenn 
Woodhead 

 
Develop a schools programme 
stakeholder group to ensure 
consistency of message, best 
practice and provide reassurance of 
our methodology moving post 
mobilisation 

Work with Children’s Services to set 
up stakeholder group 

 

w/c 12 August 2013 
Glenn Woodhead and Andrew 
Tagg (from Children’s Services) 
 
 
 
 

 
Objective 

 
Proposed activity 

 
Date and owner 

Amey to confirm to schools about 
services going forward and 
introduce themselves 

Amey to send letter to schools. Flyer 
to be included giving information 

19 August 2013 
Emma Bailey and William Lunn 
 

Page 87



16 | P a g e   D r a f t  V 4  

 

 about TFM and Amey 

Monitor Amey’s engagement with 
schools 

Amey to produce a matrix showing 
schedule of school visits and 
communications activity with them 

w/c 26 August 
Emma Bailey 

Amey to meet and greet head 
teachers and supplier staff 

Amey to make site visits to schools  Late August to late September 
2013 
Emma Bailey and William Lunn 

A paper to be presented at the 
October head teacher forums to 
encourage schools to buy into TFM 

Draft paper on new proposals for 
schools and TFM 

w/c 2 September 2013  

Glenn Woodhead and William 
Lunn 

Sign off schools and TFM paper Send draft paper to Children’s 
Services, Debbie Morris and Amey for 
comments and approval 

w/c 9 September 2013 
Glenn Woodhead Emma Bailey 
and William Lunn 

Inform schools of new helpdesk 
contact details 

Contact posters and cards to be 
designed and finalised 

 
Contact posters and cards to be 
distributed with a letter detailing key 
contacts 

16 September 2013 

Nathan Wallis 

17 September 2013 
Emma Bailey and William Lunn 

Final sign off of schools and TFM 
paper 

Paper to go to TFM Strategic 
Partnership Board  

27 September 2013 

Glenn Woodhead 

Encourage schools to buy into TFM Compile presentation for schools 
forums based on the signed off paper 

 

Week commencing 30 
September 2013 

Eleonora Pilley, Glenn 
Woodhead Emma Bailey and 
William Lunn 

Give clear information and options 
to schools about TFM.  

Present TFM at schools forums  Early October 2013 

Engage with schools regarding 
buying into TFM 

Amey to visit schools October to December 2013 

Glenn Woodhead, Emma Bailey 
and William Lunn 

Confirm the agreed services going 
forward 

Letter sent to schools who have 
agreed to buy into TFM 

January to April 2014 
Emma Bailey and William Lunn 

 
  

Page 88



17 | P a g e   D r a f t  V 4  

 

Appendix H 
Bundled Services 
 
Rates for multiple services will be discounted as follows: 
 
• Discount A – Discount for ‘bundling’ two or more associated services together. 
• Discount B – Discount for ‘bundling’ all services together as Total Facilities 

Management Services (TFM). 
 
Contract Durations 
 
Schools will be influenced by various factors when deciding on contract durations (current 
standards and relationships of providers, appetite for a TFM solution, budgetary issues etc.) 
and have therefore set a range of contract durations to suits the schools circumstances with 
a minimum one year duration.  
 
Amey propose a longer term contract (three, five or full term contract durations) with 
performance break-clauses and benchmarking for best value in line with the Project 
Agreement. This will allow schools to gain the benefit of longer contract durations but retain 
short term flexibility should circumstances change.  
 
We currently envisage that discounted rates for longer contract durations will be as follows: 

 
Discount a – 3 year contract 
Discount b – 5 year contract 
Discount c – Full term contract (9.5years from April 1st 2014) 

 
 

Page 89



LINK & FCS Schools Joint Paper on behalf of 
the Tri-boroughs

Schools Forums – H&F

Glenn Woodhead
Tri-borough TFM 
Framework Manager 14th October

P
age 90



LINK & FCS Schools Joint Paper on behalf of the Tri-boroughs
Purpose of paper
• Joint FCS/Link Proposal for property management for schools 
within the Tri-Boroughs with effect from April 2014.

Background Issues
• Unclear lines of responsibility regarding H&S compliance
• Lack of clarity on building compliance• Lack of clarity on building compliance
• Silo approach to property management
• Convoluted management information (MI)
• Lengthy and inefficient supply chains

P
age 91



Benefits for Schools of TFM
Financial 

• Between 10% and 20% price reduction depending on scale, 
contract duration

Non – financial
• Releases leadership time enabling focus on student needs
• Focus on community and social engagement • Focus on community and social engagement 
• Revenue generation via third party usage of Schools facilities
• Amey’s expertise & clear lines of responsibility with special 
regard to H&S compliance :
- Centralised electronic storage of data
- A one-stop helpdesk service 
- Innovative web-enabled technology
- Amey’s extensive experience of managing health and
- Clarity on building compliance and management

P
age 92



Governance Process
Approvals to date  

• Agreement with TAMPB on strategy  
• Agreement with Tri-b FCS Director (April 2013)
• TFM Contracts Working Group including FCS contracts 
Managers and ICF teamManagers and ICF team

• Paper co-authored with Amey
Future Approvals include

• Strategic Partnership Board
• Schools Forums x3
• Business Managers Forum 

P
age 93



Communications and Contract Process
• Substantial communication with individual schools on purpose 
and intent

• Proposition to be taken through key stakeholder groups
• Amey/Link conducting  individual schools meetings • Amey/Link conducting  individual schools meetings 
September to to December for contract sign off by January 
2013 

P
age 94



Recommendations

• Endorsement of the approach
• Nomination of attendee for the Stakeholder Group
• 1 x Secondary representative per Borough• 1 x Secondary representative per Borough
• 1 x Primary Representative per Borough
• 1 x SEN representative (nominated from across the three 
boroughs)

P
age 95



Briefing for schools’ forums: Managed services. 
 
 
Key points: 
 
• BT has been awarded contract by Hammersmith and Fulham, Kensington and 

Chelsea and Westminster to provide payroll and transactional HR services 
from 1 April 2013 
 

•  Councils will continue to provide strategic HR and employee relations service 
 

• Councils  will offer Tri borough SLA to schools from April 2013 – this will 
continue to cover: 
 
o payroll 
o HR administration 
o pensions and redundancy administration 
o strategic HR 
o employee relations advice 
o recruitment and advertising services 
o occupational health services  

 
• What does this mean for schools? 

 
o mostly “business as usual” 
o each school will continue to have designated HR contact and payroll 

contact 
o schools can choose to buy: 

� payroll and HR administration 
� strategic HR and employee relations 
� both services 
� neither service 

o statutory services will be provided to maintained schools, whether or 
not schools continue to buy the Councils’ services (this does not apply 
to Academies!) 

o if schools do not buy Councils’ services, they will have to liaise with 
their chosen payroll and/or HR providers and will be responsible for 
providing information for statutory returns 

 
• Engagement with schools 

o starts now 
o detailed SLAs will be sent to schools this month and will include: 

� full explanation of services being offered 
� charges for the separate payroll and strategic HR services 

o schools will be asked to decide whether they are going to buy one or 
both services by 31 December 2013 

 
 

October 2013 

Page 96



D
ra

ft 
W

or
kp

la
n

H
&

F
R

B
K

C
W

C
C

H
&

F
R

B
K

C
W

C
C

H
&

F
R

B
K

C
W

C
C

H
&

F
R

B
K

C
W

C
C

M
on

 1
4/

10
/2

01
3

T
hu

 0
3/

10
/2

01
3

M
on

 0
7/

10
/2

01
3

M
on

 0
3/

02
/2

01
4

T
hu

 3
0/

01
/2

01
4

M
on

 2
7/

01
/2

01
4

M
on

 1
7/

03
/2

01
4

T
hu

 1
3/

03
/2

01
4

M
on

 1
0/

03
/2

01
4

M
on

 1
6/

06
/2

01
4

F
ri 

06
/0

6/
20

14
T

ue
 1

0/
06

/2
01

4
20

13
/1

4 
A

ca
de

m
ic

 Y
ea

r 

 D
S

G
 B

ud
ge

t M
on

ito
rin

g
1.

 In
di

ca
tiv

e 
D

S
G

 fo
r 

th
e 

co
m

in
g 

ye
ar

O
ct

o
b

er
 -

 F
ir

st
 W

ee
k

Ja
n

u
ar

y 
- 

L
as

t 
W

ee
k

C
le

ar
an

ce
 o

f 
R

ep
or

ts

M
ar

ch
 -

 2
n

d
 W

ee
k

Ju
n

e 
- 

F
ir

st
 W

ee
k

A
m

en
dm

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
S

ch
oo

l F
un

di
ng

 
2.

 S
ch

oo
l D

el
eg

at
ed

 B
ud

ge
ts

1.
 P

re
vi

ou
s 

Y
ea

r's
 D

S
G

 o
ut

tu
rn

2.
 S

ch
oo

l B
al

an
ce

s

1.
 E

ar
ly

 Y
ea

rs
 B

ud
ge

ts
 a

nd
 In

di
ca

tiv
e 

al
lo

ca
tio

ns
2.

 H
ig

h 
N

ee
ds

 B
ud

ge
t U

pd
at

e

3.
 R

ep
or

t o
n 

F
in

al
 D

S
G

 a
llo

ca
tio

n
4.

 C
ha

ng
es

 to
 th

e 
S

ch
em

e 
fo

r 
C

on
fir

m
at

io
n 

of
 2

01
3/

14
 D

S
G

3.
 H

ig
h 

N
ee

ds
 In

di
ca

tiv
e 

B
ud

ge
ts

R
ep

or
t o

n 
S

ch
oo

l B
al

an
ce

s
4.

 D
S

G
 B

ud
ge

t M
on

ito
rin

g

3.
 A

gr
ee

 F
in

al
 D

S
G

 B
ud

ge
t 

al
lo

ca
tio

ns

4.
 O

th
er

 S
pe

ci
fic

 S
ch

oo
ls

 G
ra

nt
 

T
w

o 
Y

ea
r 

O
ld

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

U
pd

at
e 

T
w

o 
Y

ea
r 

O
ld

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

U
pd

at
e 

C
ha

ng
es

 to
 th

e 
S

ch
em

e 
fo

r 
F

in
an

ci
ng

 
S

ch
oo

ls
 (

H
&

F
, K

&
C

, W
C

C
) 

N
ur

se
ry

 F
un

di
ng

 R
ev

ie
w

 U
pd

at
e 

N
ur

se
ry

 F
un

di
ng

 R
ev

ie
w

 U
pd

at
e 

P
R

U
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 (
K

&
C

, W
C

C
)

S
E

N
 r

ev
ie

w
 (

W
C

C
, H

&
F

, K
&

C
)

S
E

N
 r

ev
ie

w
 (

W
C

C
, H

&
F

, K
&

C
)

S
ch

oo
l A

ud
it 

U
pd

at
e 

(W
C

C
, H

&
F

, 
S

ch
oo

l M
ea

ls
 C

on
tr

ac
t U

pd
at

e 
(W

C
C

, 

Page 97


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the last meeting
	3 A Guide to Hammersmith and Fulham's Funding Formula and Final DSG 2013/14
	4 Amendments to the School Funding Formulae
	5 Proposed Changes to School and Early Years Finance Regulations
	7 School balances
	8 Two year old programme update
	10 SEN Review
	11 School Audit Update - Changes to the Scheme for Financing Schools
	12 For information
	Item 11ai - Tri-B TFM Programme - H&F Schools Forum Slides Oct 13
	Item 11b - Managed Services Briefing for schools forums Oct2013 (2)
	Item 11c - Schools Forums Tri-Borough Workplan v2 (Autosaved)


